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For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE-_T—=F=RA=1+—HIEFE

2013 2012

—E—= —E——4F

HK$’000 HK$’000

TET T

(Restated)

(E31)

Revenue WA 764 2,786

Loss for the year attributable to KRBEBAEEATE

owners of the Company iRl (8,972) (7,768)

Net asset value per share R= 5
at 31 March BESFE HKS$0.05&8 7t HK$0.07 #7T
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The directors present their annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of China Investment Development Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 March 2013.

Principal Activities

The Company and its subsidiaries are engaged in investment holding
for medium to long-term capital appreciation purposes, and
investment in listed and unlisted securities. There have been no
significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal activities
during the year.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2013 are set
out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page
35 of the annual report. The directors do not recommend the
payment of a dividend for the year.

Property, Plant and Equipment
Details of movements in property, plant and equipment during the
year are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

Share Capital
Details of the authorised and issued share capital of the Company are
set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

Reserves

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on page 40 and in note 27 to the consolidated
financial statements respectively.

Distributable Reserves

As at 31 March 2013, in the opinion of the Directors, the Company
had no reserves available for distribution to shareholders (2012:
HKSnil).

Major Customers and Suppliers

As the Group is engaged in investment holding for medium to
long-term capital appreciation purposes, and investment in listed and
unlisted securities, there are no major customers and suppliers during
the year.
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Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 128. This summary
does not form part of the audited consolidated financial statements.

Directors
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Chan Cheong Yee
Mr. Liu Hui

Mr. Wong Chak Keung

(Appointed on 29 May 2012)
(Resigned on 1 August 2012)

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Chen Yibiao

Mr. Deng Li

Mr. Lin Song

(Removed on 18 April 2012)
(Resigned on 8 March 2013)
(Appointed on 12 September 2012)

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Fong Wo, Felix
Mr, Leung Wing Kin (Appointed on 22 June 2012)
Mr. Lung Chee Ming George (Resigned on 1 May 2012)

Mr. Tang Ping Sum

In accordance with clauses 120 and 153 of the Company’s bye-laws
(“Bye-laws”), Mr. Lin Song, Mr. Fong Wo, Felix and Mr. Tang Ping
Sum will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

Each of the non-executive directors’ terms of office is subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting in
accordance with the Bye-laws.

Directors’ and Senior Management’s
Biographies

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 28 to 32 of the
annual report.
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Directors’ Interests in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures

As at 31 March 2013, the interests and short positions held by the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance, the “SFQO”) as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) were as
follows:

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the
Company

P

EERKRM - HEROREER 2ER

R-E-—=F=A=+—H ' ARAEFRIET
BABRARRREBEEE (X RIEFMPEK
([ /&5 LB ) EXVER) Z Bty - HHEE R D
NE#ETESCDLCARRRRIZES K EE &
FI2MFAFE 2 Bt 2w kR - HARES
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RRBRODREERD 2HFR

Number of shares/underlying shares held

FiER %, FHERAEE
Number
Capacity in Number of share Approximate
Name of Directors/ which interests of shares options Total percentage of
chief executive are held held held interests shareholding
B P 1H R fE
FETBAEHE FEEREEZ5H FriEiR 3 &8 BREE FEZAE BABD
(Note 2) (Note 1)
(FftzE2) (Pf¥sE1)
Wong Chak Keung Beneficial owner - 6,300,000 6,300,000 0.98%
Eb-L: BEmEAA
Fong Wo, Felix Beneficial owner - 1,000,000 1,000,000 0.16%
paRl BEmEAA
Tang Ping Sum Beneficial owner - 1,000,000 1,000,000 0.16%
BRER EmAA
Zhang Xuming (note 3) Interest of controlled 72,304,000 - 72,304,000 11.21%
SRABRA (K15 3) corporation

SEHIARE 2 s
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Directors’ Interests in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures (continued)

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the
Company (continued)

Notes:

1. The percentage of shareholding is calculated on the basis of the
Company’s issued share capital of 644,850,760 shares as at 31 March
2013.

2. The relevant interests are share options granted pursuant to the

Company’s share option scheme adopted on 9 April 2009 (the
“Scheme”). Upon exercise of the share options in accordance with the
Scheme, ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the
Company are issuable. The share options are personal to the respective
Directors and the holders thereof are entitled to subscribe for shares of
the Company.

3. The 72,304,000 shares are held by Salus Investments Limited, a
company wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Zhang Xuming, the chief
executive officer of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2013, none of the Directors
or chief executive of the Company had any interests or short positions
in shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of
the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Share Option Scheme

The detailed disclosures relating to the Company’s share option
scheme and valuation of options are set out in note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Substantial Shareholders FERR

As at 31 March 2013, the following persons, other than a Directoror RZZ—=F=A=+—H B ARFEFHETE
chief executive of the Company, were interested or had short  fTIABY) » IRIBIEE A LG KM F 386 KEFE
positions in more than 5% of the shares and underlying shares of the 2 &M ATaCEE © 3578 5% siIA EARND B K& +E
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under &3z AR 2 AT

Section 336 of the SFO:
Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the ARG REERD 2FR
Company
Number Approximate
Capacity in which of shares percentage of
Name of Shareholders interests are held held shareholding
BRES LB BREEEZEH PR3 8B HRESAT D
(Note 1)
(Mt7E1)
Micah Holdings Limited (note 2) Beneficial owner 106,228,000 16.47%
Micah Holdings Limited (##7#2) EmEAA
Ji Jie Interest of controlled 106,228,000 16.47%
£ corporation

Sz VNG Fa

Salus Investments Limited (note 3) Beneficial owner 72,304,000 11.21%
Salus Investments Limited (413F3) BEXEAA
Yin Long Beneficial owner 66,000,000 10.23%
3 BEREAA

Notes: fifet -

1. The percentage of shareholding is calculated on the basis of the 1. REBDLDNEARANR-_ZE—=ZF=ZA=+—H2Z
Company’s issued share capital of 644,850,760 shares as at 31 March B 1T 7R 644,850,760 ALt &t E IS H
2018.

2. Micah Holdings Limited, a private limited company incorporated in the 2. Micah Holdings Limited 7377 52 /& # S B & RE M AL 2
British Virgin Islands, and wholly and beneficially owned by Ms. Ji Jie. FLAERATF  BEZRLT2EERER o

3. Salus Investments Limited, a private limited company incorporated in 3. Salus Investments Limited 73 74 5 J& # U B S 5t i A

the British Virgin Islands, and wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. SNZMABRAT - AARBITHAERERLER
Zhang Xuming, the chief executive officer of the Company. BE=HEER -
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Substantial Shareholders (continued)

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the
Company (continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2013, the Company was
not notified of any persons, other than the Directors or chief executive
of the Company, having any interests or short positions in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or
Debentures

Apart from as disclosed under the heading “Directors’ interests in
shares, underlying shares and debentures” above, at no time during
the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in or debentures of the Company or of any other body
corporate granted to any Directors or their respective spouse or
children under 18 years of age, or were any such rights exercised by
them; or was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors, their respective spouse or
children under 18 years of age to acquire such rights in the Company
or any other body corporate.

Directors’ Interest in Contracts of Significance
and Connected Party Transactions

No Director had a significant beneficial interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of the Group
to which the Company was a party during or at the end of the year.

Directors’ Service Contracts

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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Directors’ Interests in Competing Business

As at the date of this report, none of the Directors and their respective
associates had any interest in a business which causes or may cause
a significant competition with the business of the Group and any
other conflicts of interest which any such person has or may have
with the Group.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s
Listed Shares

During the year, the Company had not purchased, sold or redeemed
any of its listed securities.

Material Acquisition and Disposal of Subsidiaries
On 21 February 2012, the Company entered into the agreement with
an independent third party for the disposal of 100% equity interest in
Asia Light Limited (together with its subsidiary, the “Disposal Group”)
and the assignment of the amount due from the Disposal Group to
the Company at a cash consideration of HK$1 million. The disposal
has been completed on 20 April 2012. A gain of approximately
HK$3,681,000 resulted in the disposal. Save as above, there was no
material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries during the year ended
31 March 2013.

Emolument Policy
The Group’s employees are selected, remunerated and promoted
based on their merit, qualifications and competence.

The Company adopted the model set out in Code Provision B.1.2(c)(ii)
of Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules as its remuneration model for
determining the emoluments of the Directors. This model stipulates
that the remuneration committee shall make recommendations to the
board of the Company (the “Board”) on the remuneration packages
of individual executive directors and senior management. The
remuneration committee of the Company would take into
consideration, among other things, the duties and responsibilities of
the Directors and senior management and prevailing market
conditions when determining their remuneration.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme to provide
incentives to eligible persons, including directors, employees,
consultants, suppliers and customers of the Group. Details of the
scheme are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws or
the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro rata basis to the existing shareholders.

Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained a sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules
during the year and up to the date of this report.

Audit Committee

The Company set up an Audit Committee with written terms of
reference in compliance with the Listing Rules. Amongst other duties,
the principal duties of the Audit Committee are to review and
supervise the financial reporting process and internal control of the
Group. The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-
executive directors of the Company, namely Mr. Fong Wo, Felix, Mr.
Leung Wing Kin and Mr. Tang Ping Sum. The audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2013 have
been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

Auditor

The financial statements of the Company for the years ended 31
March 2011 and 2012 were audited by HLM & Co.. During the year,
HLM & Co. resigned as auditors of the Company and BDO Limited
was appointed as the Company’s auditor to fill the casual vacancy.

For the year ended 31 March 2013, the consolidated financial
statements of the Company have been audited by BDO Limited
whose term of office will expire upon the forthcoming annual general
meeting. A resolution to re-appoint BDO Limited as auditor of the
Company will be proposed to the shareholders of the Company for
approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Wong Chak Keung
Executive Director
Hong Kong, 28 June 2013
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Financial Results

The Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 March 2013 was
approximately HK$764,000, which represented a decrease of
approximately 72.6% when compared with that of last year. The
Group incurred a loss for the year attributable to owners of the
Company amounting to approximately HK$8,972,000, which was
increased by approximately HK$1,204,000 or 15.5% when compared
with the loss of approximately HK$7,768,000 incurred in last year.

The Group’s revenue represents interest income from convertible
bonds. The increase in the loss for the year was mainly attributable to
the increase in operating expense during the year under review.

The net asset value per share of the Group as at 31 March 2013
amounted to HK$0.05 (2012: HK$0.07).

The Board has decided not to declare a dividend for the year.

Investment Portfolio
As at 31 March 2013, the details of all investments of the Group were
summarised as below:

Interest in an associate — unlisted equity securities

Place of
incorporation/

Name of investee company establishment

AL
FR 37t B

EZREVFEH

PRC
R

Bonicast Construction Material
(Beijing) Co., Ltd.

FEREFEEMHUER)
BRAE]

Percentage
of effective
interest held
Fr¥s

B
BoLE

49%

BRI w23 B

MEEE

HEZT—=F=-A=1+—BLEFE ~AEEKA
A RT764,0008 7T MEFHMADKIT72.6% - REEE
ERNREA ARG FEEEL) 8,972,000 7T -
AT FTE A B 1847 7,768,000 78 T 14 1N4Y 1,204,000
BILEk15.5% ©

AEE 2 BOIETRBES 2 FBKA - KFEE
RN - EB R EEEENZEERAREN -

RZE—=F=ZA=+—H AEESREEFE
50058 (ZB——4 : 0.0787T) °
EEEARAEAFETEERRE
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B
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Percentage

Carrying
value

of voting

AREE
HK$’000
THAT

B AN

HK$'000

TAT

20%

6,080 6,104




CHINA INVESTMENT DEVELOPMENT LIMITED +ER & ZARALT

ANNUAL REPORT $# 2013

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
I i L 23 e

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss BAVEFAEERRECHEEE
()  Investment in convertible bonds () HERTLKES

Carrying
Name of investee companies Place of incorporation Cost value

EEREANTEH B AL 486 RES SR
HK$’000 HK$’000
T TR

Miracle Fortune Group Limited British Virgin Islands 7,000 6,973
RELEARAR REBERES
Treasure Billions Wisdom Limited British Virgin Islands 7,800 7,568
BEEEEARAF REERES
Venture Champion Limited British Virgin Islands 6,600 6,599
REBERES
(i) Investment in Hong Kong listed equity securities (i) BREREELTRAES

Effective

holding

interest

Name of Place of Number of held by the
investee company incorporation shares held Company

¥ NN

At Fris FER
BEZRENTER X 3 th 26 BHEE RS JZ: miE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHT

China Investment and Cayman Islands 1,228,000 0.211% 864 454
Finance Group Limited HEMRS
PR A SEER QA

Further details of all investments of the Group are included in note 18 ~ BEAKE AR EMNE — T HBHNEE W BH
and note 20 to the consolidated financial statements. FIFE18 1220 °

Fund Raising Activities SEEH

On 20 March 2013, a placing agreement was entered into between RZ-ZF—=F=A_+H  AAFEEREFTZ
the Company and the placing agent, pursuant to which the Placing &1 @ it - EEERIERERSRAE K7 0.50
Agent agreed to place, on a best effort basis, to one or more BILZER  BHMA — BN LB ARARLE &
independent places(s) for up to 14,600,000 new ordinary shares of % 14,600,000 xR 2 m ¥ & i@k - FAAEERNE
the Company at a price of HK$0.50 per placing share. All the placing R -T—=F=A -+ \R#TREZE TREE
shares were issued and allotted on 28 March 2013 with net proceeds  KREXFT{S X IEFHE#) 7,227,000 87T

of approximately HK$7,227,000 received by the Company.
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Financial Resources And Liquidity

As at 31 March 2013, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of
approximately HK$6,630,000 (2012: approximately HK$5,954,000).
The Group had the net current assets and the net assets of
approximately HK$27,289,000 (2012: HK$17,890,000) and
approximately HK$34,091,000 (2012: HK$42,097,000) respectively
as at 31 March 2013. The Group had the other borrowing in the
amount of approximately HK$2,899,000 (2012: nil) as at 31 March
20183. Save as disclosed above, the Group had no bank and other
borrowing as at 31 March 2013.

The current ratio, calculated on the basis of total current assets over
total current liabilities, was approximately 7.0 (2012: 6.5) at 31 March
2013.

Capital Structure

Details in the changes of the capital structure of the Company during
the year ended 31 March 2013 are set out in note 26 to the
consolidated financial statements. The capital of the Company
comprises only ordinary shares as at 31 March 2013.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

Most of the business transactions of the Group are denominated in
Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. The management of the Group will
closely monitor the fluctuation in these currencies and take
appropriate actions when needed. As at 31 March 2013, the Group
did not engage in currency hedging nor did it adopt any formal
hedging activities. The Group had not entered into any financial
derivatives in currencies other than Hong Kong dollars during the
year.

Pledge Of Assets And Contingent Liabilities
As at 31 March 2013, there were no charges on the Group’s assets
and the Group did not have any contingent liabilities.

Staff Cost

The Group’s total staff costs (including directors’ remuneration)
amounted to approximately HK$2,485,000 (2012: HK$4,500,000
including equity-settled share-based payments to certain directors
and employee in the amount of approximately HK$1,765,000) for the
year ended 31 March 2013. The employees were remunerated based
on their responsibilities and performance.

BRI w23 B

MBERRRBES
RZE—Z=ZF=ZA=Z+—RH A£EEEHELEES
Z{EW#76,630,00048 7L (=T — =4 : 495,954,000
BIL) c R_E—=F=ZA=+—H KAEEZRF
AEFEREEFED 427,289,000 T( ==
— % : 17,890,000 % 7T ) } #934,091,000% 7T ( =
T— % 142,097,000 T) c R=ZZT—=F=A4
=+—H AEEEEMEEL2899,0008w(=
T—ZF E) - BREXEBREN RZT—=F=
A=Z+—8 AEETERITREMES -

RZZ—=ZFZA=Z1+—8 "RPLIXBGRPHEE
BERUADEBEREFZ)NATI( ZE——4
5) e

o

BARRE

BERARARNEE-—Z—Z=F=ZR=+—HBLFE
ZERREEYHHBENGEMBREW 26 R
—E—=F=ZA=+—H ARRARAERELAE

it

SN L BR
REBRZHEBRZHTHAETRAREIIE - K
SEEEERTUERZEFER ZRBBER AR
VERRREETS R-_T—=F=A=+—1"
REBEWEEHEE - FFEETEMEXEHES -
REBERFRNL BT LERMAB T AN EEETER
BGHTHET R -

EEEARIRER
R-E-—=F=A=+—H AEEZEELER
o mMAKEREIARRAE -

BIRA
HEZFT—=F=-A=1+—HLEFE L5£EBZE8
TIRABE(BIEEEMS) 8952,485,0008 (=
T— 4 1 4,500,000/ BiEMETESRIES
A 2 R A S DARR A7 (T 3049 1,765,000 7 7T ) © 7R
NAIDNREBZBERRABERSE ZME
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BRI ik i B 23 B

Prospect

For the year 2012, the Euro Zone sovereign debt crisis and the
economic problem in United States downturned the global economic
growth, it is expected the global market to be challenging and volatile
in the year 2013.

In line with our investment policy and strategy, the Directors will
cautiously approach and analyse the market to safely monitor the
portfolio of investments of the Group. Most importantly, we will
attentively look out for investment opportunities which offer
reasonable returns and within the acceptable risk profile of the Group.

The Group will also consider fund raising exercise to strengthen the
financial position of the Group when suitable situation arise. With
more financial resources, the Group could expand its investment
opportunities which will have attractive return to the Group’s
operating results in the years to come.

Al
R-IZE——%F BRI #EHEKREBRLER
BEEEHEERR B _Z—=FHN2M5
S FE BB SR B ©

RAAREZRERERER  EFGREEY R
HITH ABEERAREREMS - EEEH
7 AEBEEINERHARARENAEET
EEARBENZ RERE -

REBEBRLER  ARETEEEEEEE - LAY
SRAEEZ MR - REELMBERER - A&EH
AERARERE  KMRERFEAAKEEZE
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Corporate Governance Practice

The Board recognises the importance of corporate governance
practice of a listed company and is committed to adopting the
standards of corporate governance. It is in the interest of the
shareholders and stakeholders for a listed company to operate in a
transparent manner with the adoptions of various self-regulatory
policies, procedures and monitoring mechanisms with a clear
definition of accountability of directors and management.

The Company and the Directors confirm, to the best of their
knowledge, that the Company has complied with the Code of
Corporate Governance practices (the “CG Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules during the year ended 31 March
2013, except the deviation disclosed in the following paragraph:

CODE PROVISION A.6.7

The code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code states that independent
non-executive directors and non-executive directors should also
attend general meetings and develop a balanced understanding of
the views of shareholders. Three independent non-executive directors
and two non-executive directors were unable to attend the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 28 September 2012 (the
“2012 AGM”) due to other important engagement.

CODE PROVISION E.1.2

The code provision E.1.2 of the CG code states that the chairman of
the Board should attend the annual general meeting of the Company.
Due to other business commitment, Mr. Deng Li, the chairman of the
Board, was unable to attend the 2012 AGM. However, arrangements
including the attendance of another member of the Board had been
in place to ensure the annual general meeting was in order.

B R

ERERER
EXEEXAPALTRARCEEAFTHACERE  F—
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Board of Directors

Composition

The Board comprises of executive Directors, non-executive Directors
and independent non-executive Directors during the year and up to
the date of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Chan Cheong Yee
Mr. Liu Hui

Mr. Wong Chak Keung

(Appointed on 29 May 2012)
(Resigned on 1 August 2012)

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Chen Yibiao

Mr. Deng Li

Mr. Lin Song

(Removed on 18 April 2012)
(Resigned on 8 March 2013)
(Appointed on 12 September 2012)

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Fong Wo, Felix
Mr. Leung Wing Kin (Appointed on 22 June 2012)
Mr. Lung Chee Ming George  (Resigned on 1 May 2012)

Mr. Tang Ping Sum

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company and oversees the Group’s businesses, investment and
strategic decisions and performance. The executive Board,
investment manager and senior management have been delegated
with the authority and responsibility by the Board for the day-to-day
operations of the Group while reserving certain key matters for the
approval by the Board. In addition, the Board has also delegated
various responsibilities to the Board committees. Further details of
these Board committees are set out in this report.

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationships with each other. Such balanced board
composition is formed to ensure strong independence exists across
the Board and has met recommended practice under the Code for
the Board to have at least one-third of its members comprising
independent non-executive Directors. The biographical information of
the existing Directors are set out on pages 28 to 32 under the section
headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management”.
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Chairman

The role of the chairman of the Company takes the lead in formulating
overall strategies and policies of the Group; ensures the effective
performance by the Board of its functions, including compliance with
good corporate governance practices and encourages and facilitates
active contribution of directors in Board activities. The Chairman also
ensures that all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at
Board meetings and have received adequate, complete and reliable
information in a timely manner with the assistance of the company
secretary. The Chairman was Mr. Deng Li until he resigned as the
Chairman and non-executive Director on 8 March 2013. The Board
will appoint a chairman to fill the vacancy when the appropriate
candidate has been identified.

Executive Directors

The executive Directors are responsible for running the Group and
executing the strategies adopted by the Board. They lead the Group’s
management team in accordance with the directions set by the Board
and are responsible for ensuring that proper internal control system is
in place and the Group’s business conforms to applicable laws and
regulations.

Non-executive Directors and Independent non-executive
Directors

The non-executive Directors and the independent non-executive
Directors serve the important function of ensuring and monitoring the
basis for an effective corporate governance framework. Their
participations provide adequate checks and balances to safeguard
the interests of the Group and its shareholders. The Board consists of
three independent non-executive Directors and each of them has
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise. All independent non-executive
Directors are financially independent from the Company. The
Company confirmed with all independent non-executive Directors as
to their independence with reference to the factors as set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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Board Meetings
The attendance of each Director at Board meetings during the year

ended 31 March 2013 was as follows:

Pt
BE_Z—=F=-A=1+—HLFE BEFRE
EFgeRHFEBEREIIMT

Number of
meetings
Name of Directors attended/held
HFE BT
BEapg e3EE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Chan Cheong Yee BRERLE 24/24
Mr. Liu Hui 2Bt 4/10
Mr. Wong Chak Keung B=EW A 28/28
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Mr. Chen Yibiao BRI L 0/1
Mr. Deng Li BohkE 25/25
Mr. Lin Song VN A 0/14
Independent non-executive Directors BIYKHTES
Mr. Fong Wo, Felix FHRAEAE 1/28
Mr. Leung Wing Kin el A 7/20
Mr. Lung Chee Ming, George BEFRASLA 0/3
Mr. Tang Ping Sum B RAR A 1/28
Directors’ Training =S h

As part of an ongoing process of directors’ training, the company
secretary continuously updates all Directors on latest developments
regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements to ensure compliance of the same by all Directors. All
Directors are encouraged to attend external forum or training courses
on relevant topics which may count towards continuous professional
development training.

Pursuant to Code A.6.5 of the “Corporate Governance Code”, which
has come into effect from 1 April 2012, Directors should participate in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their contribution to the
Board remains informed and relevant. For the period from 1 April
2012 to 31 March 2013, all Directors have participated in appropriate
continuous professional development activities either by attending
training courses or by reading materials relevant to the Company’s
business or to the Directors’ duties and responsibilities.

FEREFHERIET R RANEREREZE
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Company Secretary

The company secretary of the Company, Mr. Wong Chak Keung,
who is also an executive Director, fulfills the requirement under rules
3.28 and 3.29 of the Listing Rules. The company secretary supports
the Board, ensures good information flow within the Board and Board
policy and procedures are followed; advises the Board on governance
matters, facilitates induction and, monitors the training and
continuous professional development of Directors. He has attained
not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the
review period.

Insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance, with
coverage being reviewed annually, to indemnify the directors and
officers from their risk exposure arising from corporate activities.

Supply of and Access to Information

In respect of regular board meetings, an agenda and accompanying
board papers of the meeting are sent in full to all directors in advance
before the intended date of a meeting.

The management has the obligation to supply the Board and the
various Board committees with adequate information in a timely
manner to enable the members to make informed decisions. Each
director has separate and independent access to the Group’s senior
management to acquire more information than is volunteered by
management and to make further enquiries if necessary.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee has been established by the Board. The Audit
Committee comprises all the independent non-executive Directors.
The Audit Committee will meet at least twice a year. The Audit
Committee is mainly responsible for overseeing the Company’s
financial reporting system and internal control procedures; making
recommendations to the Board in the appointment and removal of
the external auditors and to approve the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditors; and any questions of resignation
or dismissal of such auditors; and reviewing the interim and annual
reports and the financial statements of the Group. The terms of
reference are available on the Company’s website.
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The attendance of each member at Audit Committee meetings during

the year ended 31 March 2013 was as follows:

BE_Z—=F=-A=1+—HILFE IFKZE
ERERNECZEG SR ZHERRAIIAT

Number of
meetings
attended/held
HE BT
2¥HA

Independent non-executive Directors BIUEHITES
Mr. Fong Wo, Felix FHREAE 2/2
Mr. Leung Wing Kin RERFE 1/2
Mr. Lung Chee Ming, George BEFRILA -
Mr. Tang Ping Sum B RAR LA 2/2

Remuneration Committee FMEESE

The Company established a Remuneration Committee which consists
of three independent non-executive Directors. The Remuneration
Committee is mainly responsible for making recommendations to the
Board on the Company’s remuneration policy for Directors and senior
management, and overseeing the remuneration packages of the
executive Directors and senior management. The terms of reference
are available on the Company’s website.

The Remuneration Committee has considered and approved the
Group’s policy for the remuneration of directors and senior
management. The Remuneration Committee has assessed the
performance of the executive directors and considered the
remuneration package of executive directors by reference to the
prevailing packages with companies listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange. Details of the directors’ remuneration are disclosed
on an individual basis in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements. The Group adopts a competitive remuneration package
for its employees. Promotion and salary increments are assessed
based on a performance related basis.
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The attendance of each member at Remuneration Committee

meeting during the year ended 31 March 2013 was as follows:

B R

—=ZH=-A=t—HILFE SFHNEE
REMEEgER cHEBREINOT
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Fﬂ wH

Number of
meetings
attended/held
HE BT
2EEE

Independent non-executive Directors BIUEHITES
Mr. Fong Wo, Felix FHREAE 11
Mr. Leung Wing Kin ZesfE s A 0/1
Mr. Lung Chee Ming, George BEFRILA -
Mr. Tang Ping Sum B RAR LA 11

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises of four directors including
three independent non-executive directors and one executive
director. The primary function of the Nomination Committee is to
review the structure, size and composition of the Board annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Group’s corporate strategy. The terms of reference
are available on the Company’s website.

The attendance of each member at Nomination Committee meetings

during the year ended 31 March 2013 was as follows:

REEESE
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NERRBEERZLEEREIIMT

Number of
meetings
attended/held
HFE BT
22HAE
Executive Director HITES
Mr. Wong Chak Keung mEREE 3/3
Non-executive Director FHITES
Mr. Deng Li BohkaE 172
Independent non-executive Directors BAFHTES
Mr. Fong Wo, Felix F RS 2/3
Mr. Leung Wing Kin PR A 0/2
Mr. Lung Chee Ming, George BEFRASEA -
Mr. Tang Ping Sum BRI L A 2/3
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Corporate Governance Function

No corporate governance committee has been established and the
Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
functions, which includes developing and reviewing the Company’s
policies, practices on corporate governance, training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management, the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements etc. During the year under review, the Board
has reviewed the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance.

Directors’ Responsibilities for the Financial
Statements

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for each financial period and to
ensure that the consolidated financial statements are in accordance
with statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards.
The Board also ensures the timely publication of the consolidated
financial statements. The Directors, having made appropriate
enquiries, confirm that they are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statements of the auditor of the Group regarding their
responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements is set out in
the Independent Auditor’'s Report on pages 33 to 34 of this annual
report.

Internal Control

The Board has overall responsibilities for maintaining sound and
effective internal control system of the Group. The Board has
delegated to the management the implementation of such systems of
internal controls as well as the review of relevant financial, operational
and compliance controls and risk management procedures. The
Audit Committee composites member of the management was
established for conducting a review of the internal control of the
Group which cover the material controls including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management functions.
Procedures have been set up, inter alia, for safeguarding assets
against unauthorised use or disposition, controlling over capital
expenditure, maintaining proper accounting records and ensuring the
reliability of financial information used for business and publication.
The management throughout the Group maintains and monitors the
internal control system on an ongoing basis.
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Auditors’ Remuneration

During the year, the remuneration paid and payable to the Company’s
auditor, BDO Limited and other professional parties are set out as
follow:

B R

BB &
RARFE  ARRENREMANARZBEME ST
EERSHMBEMERAR REMEEAL B
LERFIAT

HK$’000
FHET

BDO Limited
Audit fee for the year NEFIZEE
HLM & Co. B ETANST
Other assurance services E b iz 5 R %
Disbursement £

BRI EREEAMERMERLAR

260

150

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out
in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by the directors. Having made specific enquiry
of all directors, the Company confirmed that all the directors have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
throughout the year.

Shareholders’ Right

Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for
election as a director

Subject to the bye-laws of the Company and applicable laws, rules
and regulations, the Company may in general meeting by ordinary
resolution elect any person to be a director of the Company either to
fill a casual vacancy on the Board, or as an addition to the existing
Board.

A shareholder who is entitled to attend and vote at the meeting may
propose a person (the “Candidate”) other than a director of the
Company for election as a director at a general meeting by lodging
the following documents at the Company’s principal place of business
in Hong Kong (Units 7809-13, 78/F., The Center, 99 Queen’s Road
Central, Central, Hong Kong) for the attention of the company
secretary:

1. A written notice signed by the shareholder concerned which is
given of his/her intention to propose the Candidate for election;
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2. A written notice signed by the Candidate indicating his/her
willingness to be elected, together with the Candidate’s
biographical details as required by Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing
Rules; and

3.  The Candidate’s written consent to the publication of his/her
personal data.

The period for lodgment of the above documents shall have given to
the company secretary of the Company during a period commencing
no earlier than the day after the despatch of the notice of the general
meeting appointed for such election and ending no later than 7 days
prior to the date of such meeting.

Procedures for shareholders to convene a special general
meeting

Special general meetings shall be convened on the written requisition
of any two or more registered members of the Company deposited at
the registered office in Bermuda specifying the objects of the meeting
and signed by the requisitionists, provided that such requisitionists
held as at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company which carries the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company. General meetings may
also be convened on the written requisition of any one member of the
Company which is a recognised clearing house (or its nominee)
deposited at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong or, in
the event the Company ceases to have such a principal office, the
registered office specifying the objects of the meeting and signed by
the requisitionist, provided that such requisitionist held as at the date
of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company which carries the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company. If the Board does not within 21 days from
the date of deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene the
meeting, the requisitionist(s) themselves or any of them representing
more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may
convene the general meeting in the same manner as nearly as
possible, as that in which meetings may be convened by the Board
provided that any meeting so convened shall not be held after the
expiration of three months from the date of deposit of the requisition,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to them by the
Company.
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Communication with Shareholders

The annual general meeting provides a useful forum for shareholders
to exchange views with the Board. The chairman of the Company as
well as the chairman and members of various Board committees are
pleased to answer shareholders’ questions. Separate resolutions are
proposed at general meetings on each substantially separate issue,
including the election of individual directors. Details of poll voting
procedures and the rights of shareholders to demand a poll are
included in the circular to shareholders despatched together with the
annual report. The circular also includes relevant details of proposed
resolutions, including biographies of each candidates standing for re-
election. The results of the poll are published on the Company’s
website, and on the website of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, (http://www.hkex.com.hk).

Investor Relations

During the year under review, the Group has proactively enhanced its
corporate transparency and communications with its shareholders
and the investment community through the announcement of its
mandatory interim and final reports. Through the timely distribution of
other announcements, the Group has also kept the public abreast of
its latest developments.
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Executive Directors

Mr. Chan Cheong Yee, aged 49, has been appointed as an
executive Director of the Company since May 2012. Mr. Chan holds
a Bachelor of Science degree from the College of Business
Administration of The University of South Florida in the United States
of America. Mr. Chan is currently a licensed person to carry out type
1 (dealing in securities), type 2 (dealing in futures contracts), type 3
(leveraged foreign exchange trading) and type 9 (asset management)
regulated activities under the Securities and Future Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong). He is experienced in
dealing in securities, fund management, corporate management,
corporate finance and managing listed investment companies under
Chapter 21 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange.

In June 2003, Mr. Chan joined China Innovation Investment Limited
(stock code: 1217) (“ClI”), an investment company listed on the Stock
Exchange, as an executive director. He was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of Bingo Group Holdings Limited
(stock code: 8220), a company listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market of the Stock Exchange, in August 2007, and was re-
designated as an executive director of Bingo Group Holdings Limited
in April 2009. Mr. Chan was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of Agritrade Resources Limited (stock code: 1131)
in June 2010, an executive director of China Investment and Finance
Group Limited (stock code: 1226) (“CIFG”) in March 2011, an
executive director of Capital VC Limited (stock code: 2324) (“CVC”) in
November 2012 and an executive director of China New Economy
Fund Limited (stock code: 80) (“CNEF”) in June 2013. All of ClI, CIFG,
CVC and CNEF are investment companies listed on the Stock
Exchange.
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Mr. Wong Chak Keung, aged 46, has been an executive Director,
company secretary and financial controller of the Company since
2011. Mr. Wong holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Business from The
University of Southern Queensland in Australia. Mr. Wong is also a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and CPA Australia respectively. Mr. Wong has been in the accounting
profession for over 15 years. Before joining the Company, Mr. Wong
also held various positions in an international accounting firm and in
the corporate finance, educational business and manufacturing
sectors in Hong Kong. Mr. Wong is currently an independent non-
executive director of China Seven Star Shopping Limited (stock code:
245) and also an independent non-executive director of Bingo Group
Holdings Limited (stock code: 8220) which are listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) and the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange
(the “GEM”) respectively. Mr. Wong was an executive director of
China Innovation Investment Limited (stock code: 1217) during the
period from 12 November 2007 to 19 June 2011 and an executive
director of China Trends Holdings Limited (stock code: 8171) during
the period from 25 February 2008 to 19 June 2011 and the two
companies are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and
the GEM respectively.

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Lin Song, aged 42, has been appointed as a non-executive
Director of the Company since September 2012. He graduated from
the Art History Department of the Central Academy of Fine Arts in
Beijing. Mr. Lin is the chairman of Hanmo Art Gallery at Beijing, the
vice-chairman of Art Gallery Association of Beijing, a council member
of Liu Kaiqu Arts Foundation, a council member of the project for
youth curators under Wu Zuoren International Foundation of Fine
Arts, a special expert of the Master of Arts Management Department
of the Central Academy of Fine Arts, a special expect of the senior
seminar of investment and collection under the Tsinghua Academy of
Fine Arts, a consultant of Chinese oil painting and contemporary art
under Beijing Poly International Auction Co. Ltd. and a special expect
of oil painting under Beijing China Painting and Callgraphy Collector
Association.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Fong Wo, Felix, BBS, JP, aged 62, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company since 2011. Mr.
Fong was the founding partner of Arculli Fong & Ng (now renamed as
King & Wood Mallesons) and is a consultant of King & Wood
Mallesons. Mr. Fong received his engineering degree in Canada in
1974 and his Juris Doctor degree from Osgoode Hall Law School in
Toronto in 1978.

Mr. Fong is a member of the law societies of Hong Kong and
England, and had been honorary legal counsels of a number of
nonprofit organisations in Hong Kong such as The Chinese
Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong.

Mr. Fong is currently one of the China-appointed Attesting Officers in
Hong Kong appointed by the Ministry of Justice of China. Mr. Fong
undertook a number of community and social roles, such as the
former Chairman of the Chinese Canadian Association of Hong Kong,
the Chairman of the Advisory Council on Food and Environmental
Hygiene and a member of the Hong Kong Film Development Council.
He is also a director of the Hong Kong Basic Law Institute Limited, a
member of Guangdong Provincial Committee of Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference and a director of China Overseas
Friendship Association. In the area of education, Mr. Fong is a
founding member and the first director of the Canadian International
School of Hong Kong, and an advisor to the Faculty of Business of
University of Victoria in Canada.

Currently, Mr. Fong is an independent non-executive director of a
number of listed companies, namely Kingway Brewery Holdings
Limited, SPG Land (Holdings) Limited, Evergeen International
Holdings Limited and Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited,
whose stocks are listed on the Stock Exchange, and also China
Qilfield Services Limited, whose shares are listed on the Stock
Exchange and the Shanghai Stock Exchange.

Mr. Fong is a Justice of Peace and was awarded a Bronze Bauhinia
Star by the Government of Hong Kong in recognition of his public
service.
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Mr. Leung Wing Kin, aged 55, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company since June
2012. Mr. Leung has over 20 years of management experience in the
leisure and tourism business. He is the vice chief of the Audit
Committee of Project Ganquan of the Chinese Association of Poverty
Alleviation and Development managed by The State Council Leading
Group Office of Poverty Alleviation and Development.

Mr. Tang Ping Sum, aged 56, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company since April 2011.
Mr. Tang graduated from The University of Western Australia in
Australia with a bachelor of commerce degree in 1982 and The
Macquarie University, New South Wales in Australia with a master of
applied finance degree in 1992. He had been a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants until 2007 and is a
member of the CPA Australia.

Mr. Tang has over 20 years’ experience in investment consultancy
and financial and asset management businesses. Mr. Tang is
currently a director of Grand Partners Asset Management Limited. He
served as a manager in the licensing department of the Securities and
Futures Commission and held senior positions at Tanrich Financial
Group Limited, Hantec Investment Holdings Limited, Taifook
Securities Group Limited and Wing Fung Financial Group Limited. Mr.
Tang was an independent non-executive director of Sino Resources
Group Limited (stock code: 0223), the securities of which are listed
on the Stock Exchange from 30 April 2009 to 31 December 2010
and a non-executive director of Univision Engineering Limited (AIM
code: UVEL), the securities of which are listed on London Stock
Exchange from December 2005 to December 2011. At present, he is
an independent non-executive director in Cheung Wo International
Holdings Limited (stock code: 0009), the securities of which are listed
on the Stock Exchange.

Senior Management

Mr. Zhang Xuming, aged 43, was appointed as the chief executive
officer of the Company in March 2013. He obtained his Bachelor of
Economics degree from Huazhong University of Science and
Technology in The People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) in 1992
and obtained his PRC financial economics qualification certificate of
specialty and technology in 1996.
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Currently, Mr. Zhang is also a director of Tyling (Tianjin) Fund Limited,
an investment and fund management company in the PRC. In 2008,
Mr. Zhang served as the vice president of China Resources and
Transportation Group Limited, whose shares are listed on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong (stock code: 269) and was responsible for
supervising project investment, sales and marketing and overseas
businesses. Prior to joining China Resources and Transportation
Group Limited, Mr. Zhang held various senior positions in several well
known trust investment companies and land and property
development companies in the PRC. He was also appointed as a
distinguished visiting professor of the faculty of finance of Nankai
University since 2011.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA INVESTMENT
DEVELOPMENT LIMITED

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands and continued in Bermuda with
limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Investment Development Limited, (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 35 to 127, which comprise
the consolidated and the company statements of financial position as
at 31 March 2013, and consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal controls as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with agreed terms of
engagement and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
31 March 2013 and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants
Chan Wing Fai

Practising Certificate no. P05443

Hong Kong, 28 June 2013
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE-_ZT—=F=A=1+—HILFE

2013
—E—-=
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
By = FBT FHT
(RESEET)]
(E71)
Revenue WA 8 764 2,786
Other income HA A 8 1,690 1,209
Change in fair value of financial assets at fair value BATEFATERREZ
through profit or loss BBEERATEE 1,086 (1,756)
Gain on redemption of convertible bonds BRI SRR ES 2 s = 5,393
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RMBRR W 31 3,681 1
Administrative expenses TEA Y (16,117) (15,247)
Finance costs BB A 9 (40) (148)
Share of loss of an associate ME— KB E DR ZEE 18 (36) (6)
Loss before income tax expense BRETSHASAIERE 11 (8,972) (7,768)
Income tax expense Frie R 10 = -
Loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company AR Al H A B REEEE (8,972) (7,768)
Other comprehensive income: Hit2mEue :
Exchange difference arising from a subsidiary REE-—RINBRAIELE
during the year ZIEHZ5E = 334
Release of investment revaluation reserve upon HETHENKEER
disposal of available-for-sale financial assets BB S EE (1,278) 875
Change in fair value of available-for-sale AHEVBKEEYZ
financial assets RNEEE = 1,278
Release of exchange reserve upon disposal HE—RIE A AR
of a subsidiary =T (5,049) -
Exchange difference arising from an associate REE-ZFMERREE
during the year ZERERE 66 -
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax ~ AFEEM 2 EWE @ FIBRFHIE (6,261) 2,487
Total comprehensive income for the year REEEERSEE (15,233) (6,281)
Loss per share BRESR 14
— Basic (HK cents per share) — EAR(FRBMN) (1.42) (1.25)
— Diluted (HK cents per share) — EE (B (1.42) (1.29)
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As at 31 March 2013
R-E—=%=ZA=+—H

2013
—g_=
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
By sE FTET FHET
(RESEIEN)]
(&%)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEEREE
Non-current assets FkRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BE MRE 16 698 2,837
Interest in an associate PN AN W - e 18 6,104 6,074
Available-for-sale financial assets A HEMEEE 19 - 15,296
6,802 24,207
Current assets REEE
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss IR AF Bzt AfEIERERIE 2
W75 E E 20 21,594 3,590
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments H b fEWGUR ~ e MIEN A 21 3,584 3,317
Amount due from a shareholder FE — Z AR R kI8 25 - 3,884
Bank and cash balances RITNRIReER 22 6,630 5,954
31,808 16,745
Assets of a disposal group classified NEARBEEEZHE
as held for sale MRl EE 23 - 4,377
31,808 21,122
Current liabilities pEIA=R i
Other payables and accrued charges HMEMARIERERTER 1,471 1,224
Other borrowing HiEE 24 2,899 -
Amounts due to directors JENEEFIE 25 149 -
4,519 1,004
Liabilities of a disposal group classified DEABIELE 2 NEHER
as held for sale ZBfE 23 - 2,008
4,519 3,232
Net current assets RBEEFE 27,289 17,890
Net assets EEZFHE 34,091 42,097
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ANNUAL REPORT $# 2013

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
w5 IR DL

As at 31 March 2013
WZE—=F=A=+—H

2013
—E—-=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
(Restated)
(E7)
EQUITY e
Equity attributable to owners of the Company RABEE AELER
Share capital R AN 26 6,449 6,303
Reserves (e 27,642 35,794
Total equity FEXSHAEE 34,091 42,097
Net asset value per share BREEZFE 29 | HK$0.05%7T HK$0.07/E T

On behalf of the Board

Wong Chak Keung
BER
Director

EE

REREFE

Chan Cheong Yee
PREZ
Director

EE
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ANNUAL REPORT $# 2013

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
S B55IR Bk

As at 31 March 2013
R-E—=%=ZA=+—H

2013
—E—-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FET
(RESEIEN)]
(&%)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERERE
Non-current assets FkRBEE
Property, plant and equipment L E Y 16 695 2,837
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR ZRE 17 2 2
Available-for-sale financial assets A HEMEEE 19 - 15,296
697 18,135
Current assets REBEE
Financial assets at fair value through BAFERAEBRERE
profit or loss TG EE 20 21,594 3,590
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE BT B A B 3 0E 25 - 36,195
Amount due from a shareholder FEW — Z IR R kI8 25 - 3,884
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments  E b EUWFRTE ~ 24 &
SN ] 21 3,543 3,317
Bank and cash balances WRITRIRS LT 22 6,499 5,779
31,636 52,765
Current liabilities REBAE
Other payables and accrued charges HAb IR ETE A 1,462 1,224
Other borrowing Hithfg & 24 2,899 -
Amounts due to directors JEREEFIR 25 149 -
Amount due to a subsidiary JEN—KMIB A EI IR 25 - 32,782
4,510 34,006
Net current assets REEEZHE 27,126 18,759
Net assets EEFE 27,823 36,894
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
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As at 31 March 2013
WZE—=F=A=+—H

2013
—E—-=
HK$’000 HK$'000
T TH
(Restated)
(E71)
EQUITY R
Share capital B& A 26 6,449 6,303
Reserves 1 27 21,374 30,591
Total equity FE AR 27,823 36,894
On behalf of the Board RREZS
Wong Chak Keung Chan Cheong Yee
BER PREZ
Director Director
EF s




CHINA INVESTMENT DEVELOPMENT LIMITED +ER & ZARALT

ANNUAL REPORT $# 2013

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
s M4 52 ) o

For the year ended 31 March 2013
BE-FT-=—4-A-t+HLHFE

Convertible
Investment bonds Share
Share Share  revaluation Warrant equity option  Exchange  Accumulated
capital premium reserve resenve resenve reserve reserve losses
B fE  EXEE
HK$'000 0 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AL 7 TAL BT TAT TAn TAT
At April 2011 W-g--£mA-A 6050 90771 (675) 82 106% - 4715 (118809  (BAM4)
Loss for the year, as restated AEEEE(E) - - - - - - - (7768) (7,768
Other comprehensive income, A2 EihE (E31)
as restated
— Exchange difference arising from - ER-FHBAT
a subsidiary during the year EEzERER - - - - - - 334 - 334
— Change in fair value of avallable-for-sale ~ — AT EBHEEY
financial assets AFEES - - 1278 - - - - - 1278
— Release of investment revaluation reserve.  — HE T HER A ER
upon disposal of an available-for-sale BREEEMRERE
financial assets - - 875 - - - - - 875
- - 2,153 - - - 334 - 2,487
Total comprehensive income for the year, ~ KEE2EUES
as restated (E3) - - 2,153 - - - 334 (7,768) (5,281)
Capital reorganisation RAEA (5,747) (90,771) - - - - - 96,518 -
Redemption of convertiole bonds BEHRES - - - - (10,696) - - - (1069)
Issue of shares ) 6,000 54,000 - - - - - - 60,000
Share Issue expenses RABITRZ - (52) - - - - - - (52
Reversal of unlisted warrants BRI 5 - - - (842) - - - 842 -
Recognition of equity-settled share-based ~ HRERAEE I RAF
payments - - - - - 4730 - - 4730
At31 March 2012 and 1 April 2012,  W=%-=f
as restated ZA=t-HR
“g-CE
MA-A(E5) 6,303 53948 1,278 - - 4,730 5,049 (29.211) 42,007




CHINA INVESTMENT DEVELOPMENT LIMITED HER &M Z AR T

ANNUAL REPORT $# 2013

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
B o RE A 22 W R

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE-_Z—=F=-A=1+—HLHFE

Convertible
Investment bonds Share
Share Share revaluation  Warrant equity option Exchange Accumulated
capital  premium reserve  reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total

REER RREE TRRER  BEE
Bx Rt 1 CL I i W ERf%  RHER &t
HK$000  HK$'000 HKS'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
TEr Tz  fEr  TER  FEz < fEr @ TER TEr  TEn

At 31 March 2012 and 1 April 2012, R-B-Z%

as restated ZA=t-HR
8-
A-R(EH) 6,303 53,948 1,278 - - 4,730 5,049 (29,211) 42,097
Loss for the year rEEER - - - - - - = (8,972)  (8,972)
Other comprehensive income A2 ENE
— Release of investment revaluation reserve.  — &R HER B AR
upon disposal of avallable-for-sale RRREAEREHE
financial assets - - (1,278) - - - - - (1,278
— Release of exchange reserve upon - HE-ZHBAAR
disposal of a subsidiary (note 31(a)) FRIRIE H B
(F31() - - - - - = (5,049) - (5,049
— Exchange difference arising from - ER-FHENTEE
an assoclate during the year (note 18) ZEREB(HE18) - - - - - - 66 - 66
- - (12m) . - - (4983 - (6:261)
Total comprehensive income for the year FRZAkGEE - - (1,278) - - - (4,983) (8,972)  (15,233)
Issue of shares BIRG 146 1,154 - - - - - - 7,300
Share Issue expenses RipgaER - (73) - & 3 o = o (73)
At 31 March 2013 R=B-=F
=A=t-A 6,449 61,029 - - - 4730 66 (38,183 34,001




CHINA INVESTMENT DEVELOPMENT LIMITED +ER & ZARALT

ANNUAL REPORT $# 2013

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
a1 Bl A i R

For the year ended 31 March 2013
BE-FT-=—4-A-t+HLHFE

2013 2012
—EB-=F —E——F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
By = FBT T
(RESEET)]
(E3)
Cash flows from operating activities RELEEB HERE
Loss before income tax expense BRETEH A AT E R (8,972) (7,768)
Adjustments for: BT EBEHRAE
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BERSETE 11 1,399 837
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment  #1% « iE &R E 2 B EEE 11 730 -
Equity-settled share-based payment RS EE AR 11 = 4,730
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HETHENBEE 2 W
financial assets 8 - (1,008)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RMBAR &= (3,681) (1)
Gain on redemption of convertible bonds BRI MRk ES 2 W = (6,393)
Interest income SN ON 8 (764) (2,786)
Interest expenses FEAY 9 40 -
Interest expense on convertible bonds ABRREE 2B 9 - 63
Imputed interest on convertible bonds ARREEFZETERNE 9 - 85
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HE¥E - E M&EZEIE 11 - 63
Change in fair value of financial assets BRAFEFATEREE
at fair value through profit or loss BBEEs ATEE (1,086) 1,756
Waive of other payables o H A0 RIE 8 (1,650) -
Over-provision of expenses bkt 8 (40) (200)
Share of loss of an associate PME—FREE AR CER 18 36 6
Written off of property, plant and equipment WEEME  BEREE 11 13 -
(13,975) (9,616)
Purchase of financial assets at fair value BERATEFALEREEY
through profit or loss MBEE (21,400) (5,346)
Redemption of financial assets at fair value BRZRATEFTALEEREE Y
through profit or loss s EE 4,482 -
Decrease in loans receivable [EBEFR L = 25,614
Increase in other receivables, deposits HibfEUIE e Rk
and prepayments B FRIEE AN (479) (2,912)
Decrease/(increase) in amount due from B —Z R R FER D, (32 )
a shareholder 3,884 (3,884)
Increase/(decrease) in other payables and Hu e B R EAE R
accrued charges #in,/ Cad) 1,898 (1,727)
Increase in amounts due to directors JERTEEFRIAE M 149 -
Decrease in amount due to a shareholder e — BRI/ D = (4,200)
Cash used in operations ReEmERS (25,441) (2,071)
Interest received EYHE 976 2,423
Interest paid RESEES = (3,980)
Net cash used in operating activities REEBHERSTE (24,465) (3.628)




CHINA INVESTMENT DEVELOPMENT LIMITED HER &M Z AR T

ANNUAL REPORT $# 2013

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
AR Bl B R

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE-_ZT—=F=A=1+—HILFE

2013 2012
—EB-=F —E—_F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B sE FEx FHT
(RESEET)]
(&%)
Cash flows from investing activities REREXBECZEERE
Net cash inflow from disposal of a subsidiary HE—RMBARZRESRAFE 31 993 2,105
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BENE BELRE ) (3,540)
Purchase of available-for-sale financial assets BEAHENKEE - (14,018)
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale HETHEVBEE ZSFUA
financial assets 14,018 3,000
Payment for investment in an associate H-FWERBRE 2R = (6,080)
Net cash from/(used in) investing activities REEHKFE (i) RETHE 15,008 (18,533)
Cash flows from financing activities REBMETH BERE
Proceeds from borrowing fEEMEHRE 3,699 -
Repayment of borrowing BERBE (800) -
Proceeds from issuing of shares BT TS F0E 7,300 60,000
Shares issuing expenses paid BERBEHEITRAY (73) (52)
Repayment of convertible bonds B Ak &S = (32,000)
Net cash from financing activities METHAERLSFE 10,126 27,948
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents H&RELZEYEINTE 669 5,787
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes ExgmoyE = 460
Cash and cash equivalents FNRERELEEY
at beginning of year 5,961 (286)
Cash and cash equivalents atend of year EXREERESZEY 6,630 5,961
Bank and cash balances BITRBSET 22 6,630 5,954
Bank and cash balances included in a disposal STAEDEAREREZHE
group classified as held for sale R 2 BT RREET = 7

6,630 5,961




CHINA INVESTMENT DEVELOPMENT LIMITED +ER & ZARALT

ANNUAL REPORT $# 2013

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
s 1 YU 0 0 B i

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE_T—=F=RA=1+—HILFE

1.

General Information

China Investment Development Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company
with limited liability on 25 March 1998 and was de-registered on
11 March 2011 and was registered by way of continuation as
an exempted company in Bermuda on 2 March 2011. The
Company’s shares have been listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) with effect from 12
December 2000. Its registered office is located at Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda and its
principal office in Hong Kong is located at Units 7809-13, 78/F,
The Center, 99 Queen’s Road Central, Central, Hong Kong.

The Company is principally engaged in investment holding for
medium to long-term capital appreciation purposes, and
investment in listed and unlisted securities. The principal
activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note 17
to the consolidated financial statements.

Adoption of Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(@ Adoption of amendment to HKFRSs — first
effective on 1 April 2012
Amendments to HKFRS 1 Severe Hyper Inflation and Removal
of Fixed Dates for First-time
Adopters
Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures — Transfers of
Financial Assets
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax — Recovery of
Underlying Assets

The adoption of these amendments has no material
impact on the Group’s financial statements.

—RER
FEEEREBER QBT ARA] AR
—NWNANF=ZAZ+HBERSHSFMATL
ZEREERAR  HER-_TE——F=H
+—BHEEEM BN -E——F=A =AM
BEZEARBREIMRBERELNE - AR
AROBE-ZSETF T A+ BREEBH
ERGAERAR([HRET]) £ - RARIZ
& i 9% = JE {7 # Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda * ME & #42
MERMRBBRREFREFR I FFRIRF L
7812 7809-13 % -

RRARZ EEEBIHERENESGHHER
BHEAEE  URERER EMERIFLMES -
RARMB AR 2 EEEBEHNRE M BHRE
MIE17 o

RMBRVBREEN(EEBMER
HEA

=R PSS

(@) HEMBBYBRELELZERT —
REZZ-ZFHA-HEXREN

BB RE BERBREREEXR
ERIE15 REREET RS
BRI

BRMBWEEN RE-URUBEE
ETHR B

BB QHES BETE — e

E12%R 2185 HREE

R FETHARBMBERAMES
N2



CHINA INVESTMENT DEVELOPMENT LIMITED HER &M Z AR T

ANNUAL REPORT $# 2013

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. Adoption of Hong Kong Financial Reporting

Standards (“HKFRSs”) (continued)
New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective

(b)

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant to
the Group’s financial statements, have been issued, but
are not yet effective and have not been early adopted by

the Group.

HKFRSs (Amendments)

Amendments to HKAS 1
(Revised)

Amendments to HKAS 32

Amendments to HKFRS 7

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 10

HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13

HKAS 19 (2011)

HKAS 27 (2011)

HKAS 28 (2011)

Amendments to HKFRS 10,

HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27
(2011)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July

2012

B Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2013

s Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2014

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2015

Annual Improvements
2009-2011 Cycle?

Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income’
Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities®
Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities?
Financial Instruments*

Consolidated Financial
Statements?

Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities?

Fair Value Measurement?

Employee Benefit?
Separate Financial Statements?
Investment in Associates and

Joint Ventures?
Investment entities®

Aok BB A i

For the year ended 31 March 2013

BE_T—=F=A=+—HILFE

2. EMBRBUMBHREERN(HFEMBR
HER ) (&)

(b)

ERME R RERZ I, RIEFT

BEMBIREEL

ARE BN ERFRA AT EM/ME H R
AR BT RE SR SR B A IR R A B AT

A/ RT BB B R E AR -

BEMBREE —TTNEFE

(87T ) “E——FERr
FEI#E?
EESTERE 1Y 2HEMmEAREER
(fE1&3]) 21837
ERGENERY W EER
ZIBE] HHKaEe
ERUBREEN HEMBEES
BT 2B KAk
BEWBMELD  BHBIA
Fo%
ERMBWEEN GEMBERE?
105
ERUBREEL AEMERC
125 BHRE?
BRMBIEREEDN  LEEFE?
F135%
ERGTENE10% EEEF?
(Z2——F)

EEOHERE 07 B ERE?
(Z%—%)

EBe R NEEATRABLE

(Z8——%) A
ERMBREED REERS

F10% - BEHE

BEEAE 125 R

B ES

Fo7%

(Z%2—F)

ZIEET

! REB——FLA A BAKZIF

& BRI A R

? N_F-—=F A - RAXZERABZF

& BRI A

¢ R-T—MFE-A B2 &AKZIF

& BRI A

‘ N_F—hF-A-RAXZEMABZF

& BRI A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ok 1 T 5 8 % B ik

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE_T—=F=RA=1+—HILFE

2. Adoption of Hong Kong Financial Reporting

Standards (“HKFRSs”) (continued)
New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (continued)

(b)

HKFRSs (Amendments) —

Annual Improvements

2009-2011 Cycle
The improvements made amendments to four standards.

(i)

(i)

HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements

The amendments clarify that the requirement to
present a third statement of financial position when
an entity applies an accounting policy
retrospectively or makes a retrospective restatement
or reclassification of items in its financial statements
is limited to circumstances where there is a material
effect on the information in that statement of
financial position. The date of the opening statement
of financial position is the beginning of the preceding
period and not, as at present, the beginning of the
earliest comparative period. The amendments also
clarify that, except for disclosures required by HKAS
1.41-44 and HKAS 8, the related notes to the third
statement of financial position are not required to be
presented. An entity may present additional
voluntary comparative information as long as that
information is prepared in accordance with HKFRS.
This may include one or more statements and not a
complete set of financial statements. Related notes
are required for each additional statement
presented.

HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment

The amendments clarify that items such as spare
parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment
are recognised as property, plant and equipment
when they meet the definition of property, plant and
equipment. Otherwise, such items are classified as
inventory.

2. RMBEBUBREER(BBHBER
g ) (4)
LSR8 5 2 R 2 35T AT
BRI AR ()
ERABRE LR (ETFK) — =

(b)

ENEE=
BRIk

(i)

f——iﬁ@‘?Zil’“ﬂﬁUE
SR ERIEHERT

B ﬁﬁ RIIZE 155 2 3BT &
ZEEIRE  FHAEERENE
AEBUR RN A S HRESER
BYESSEFHEMESNE=H
MM EZETE - EEAREZ
%%#ﬁiméﬂ%ﬁikwaz
o HAFN B BRI 3R B B = R AT
*&%%ﬁ%ZM’ﬁ#@Mﬁ
AALE) R RAMBRZ
K o ZEBETINEE  BREBEE
LEANEINELMFERBEBSFLE
RIS ME 2 HTEI - BARS
“HUBRRKR2Y BT &
BRI 2RI EELEER - R
AERERBE B BEREERR
o WA BIE—MNRZMHHFER M
WH—EREGBFRE - IEIE
REINRKR A2 EREME

BREFERFEITENFE B
éﬂ{%
ZEERRE - BRi - BRRME

k#ERmEBEANTAYE B
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ANNUAL REPORT $# 2013

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. Adoption of Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (continued)

HKFRSs (Amendments) — Annual Improvements
2009-2011 Cycle (continued)

(i) HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation

The amendments clarify that income tax relating to
distributions to holders of an equity instrument and
to transaction costs of an equity transaction should
be accounted for in accordance with HKAS 12
Income Taxes. Depending on the circumstances
these items of income tax might be recognised in
equity, other comprehensive income or in profit or
loss.

(iv)  HKAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting

The amendments clarifies that in interim financial
statements, a measure of total assets and liabilities
for a particular reportable segment need to be
disclosed when the amounts are regularly provided
to the chief operating decision maker and there has
been a material change in the total assets and
liabilities for that segment from the amount
disclosed in the last annual financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 (Revised) — Presentation of
Items of Other Comprehensive Income

The amendments to HKAS 1 (Revised) require the Group
to separate items presented in other comprehensive
income into those that may be reclassified to profit and
loss in the future (e.g. revaluations of available-for-sale
financial assets) and those that may not (e.g. revaluations
of property, plant and equipment). Tax on items of other
comprehensive income is allocated and disclosed on the
same basis. The amendments will be applied
retrospectively.

Aok BB A i

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE-_ZT—=F=A=1+—HILFE

2. EMBRBUMBHREERN(HFEMBR
HER ) (&)

(b)

ERME R RERZ I, RIEFT

BBMBRERER ()

BB BHREZER (IETFX) — =F

FNFEZFE-——FRARZFENE

(#&)

(i) BHBEEEERERFEHFLA:
27
ZEERBR  BRRATARE
AFER DR MR 5 2 R K
AEEZAAEHR - AREEESE
EAFA2HABHRARK - RED
RIES - LFEFTIS A B AR
@ Ht IR B E TR

(v) & &EHHERZE 34 55 BB 75 3

ZEEREB  ETHMBERER
o B AR E R G D WAt
BZERENBBRBTEHRIR
BERREER MaOBZEE
kaBERRR Lt —OFEFHHRE
iR EEREANEDHE - AAKE
FHEENRABRBZIE -

EBE TR 195 (BIE5T) 2 85T
— 2JAMEEHKZEE
FRGFERFE R (BIERT) ZIEFTR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
s 1 YU 0 0 B i

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HEz—Z—=F=-A=+—HLHFE

2. Adoption of Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 32 — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities

The amendments clarify the offsetting requirements by
adding appliance guidance to HKAS 32 which clarifies
when an entity “currently has a legally enforceable right to
set off” and when a gross settlement mechanism is
considered equivalent to net settlement.

Amendments to HKFRS 7 — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities

HKFRS 7 is amended to introduce disclosures for all
recognised financial instruments that are set off under
HKAS 32 and those that are subject to an enforceable
master netting agreement or similar arrangement,
irrespective of whether they are set off under HKAS 32.

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments

Under HKFRS 9, financial assets are classified into
financial assets measured at fair value or at amortised
cost depending on the entity’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual cash
flow characteristics of the financial assets. Fair value gains
or losses will be recognised in profit or loss except for
those non-trade equity investments, which the entity will
have a choice to recognise the gains and losses in other
comprehensive income. HKFRS 9 carries forward the
recognition, classification and measurement requirements
for financial liabilities from HKAS 39, except for financial
liabilities that are designated at fair value through profit or
loss, where the amount of change in fair value attributable
to change in credit risk of that liability is recognised in
other comprehensive income unless that would create or
enlarge an accounting mismatch. In addition, HKFRS 9
retains the requirements in HKAS 39 for derecognition of
financial assets and financial liabilities.

2. EMBRBUMBHREERN(HFEMBR
HER ) (&)

(b)

ERME R RERZ I, RIEFT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. Adoption of Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (continued)
HKFRS 10 — Consolidated Financial Statements

HKFRS 10 introduces a single control model for
consolidation of all investee entities. An investor has
control when it has power over the investee (whether or
not that power is used in practice), exposure or rights to
variable returns from the investee and the ability to use
the power over the investee to affect those returns.
HKFRS 10 contains extensive guidance on the
assessment of control. For example, the standard
introduces the concept of “de facto” control where an
investor can control an investee while holding less than
50% of the investee’s voting rights in circumstances
where its voting interest is of sufficiently dominant size
relative to the size and dispersion of those of other
individual shareholders to give it power over the investee.
Potential voting rights are considered in the analysis of
control only when these are substantive, i.e. the holder
has the practical ability to exercise them. The standard
explicitly requires an assessment of whether an investor
with decision making rights is acting as principal or agent
and also whether other parties with decision making rights
are acting as agents of the investor. An agent is engaged
to act on behalf of and for the benefit of another party and
therefore does not control the investee when it exercises
its decision making authority. The implementation of
HKFRS 10 may result in changes in those entities which
are regarded as being controlled by the Group and are
therefore consolidated in the financial statements. The
accounting requirements in the existing HKAS 27 on other
consolidation related matters are carried forward
unchanged. HKFRS 10 is applied retrospectively subject
to certain transitional provisions.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
HEz—Z—=F=-A=+—HLHFE

2. Adoption of Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (continued)
HKFRS 12 — Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

HKFRS 12 integrates and makes consistent the
disclosures requirements about interests in subsidiaries,
associates and joint arrangements. It also introduces new
disclosure requirements, including those related to
unconsolidated structured entities. The general objective
of the standard is to enable users of financial statements
to evaluate the nature and risks of a reporting entity’s
interests in other entities and the effects of those interests
on the reporting entity’s financial statements.

HKFRS 13 — Fair Value Measurement

HKFRS 13 provides a single source of guidance on how
to measure fair value when it is required or permitted by
other standards. The standard applies to both financial
and non-financial items measured at fair value and
introduces a fair value measurement hierarchy. The
definitions of the three levels in this measurement
hierarchy are generally consistent with HKFRS 7 “Financial
Instruments: Disclosures”. HKFRS 13 defines fair value as
the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date (i.e. an exit price).
The standard removes the requirement to use bid and
ask prices for financial assets and liabilities quoted in an
active market. Rather the price within the bid-ask spread
that is most representative of fair value in the
circumstances should be used. It also contains extensive
disclosure requirements to allow users of the financial
statements to assess the methods and inputs used in
measuring fair values and the effects of fair value
measurements on the financial statements. HKFRS 13
can be adopted early and is applied prospectively.

2. EMBRBUMBHREERN(HFEMBR
HER ) (&)

(b)

ERME R RERZ I, RIEFT
BBMBRERER ()
EBUBHEERE 1297 — RAM
BERCERHKE

BEMBHREEAFE 2REARSR—F
BRHEBAR  BERARRBAREZ
B WEME - LRG| AFHE
BE - BRERGEAREEEREH
o BN - MREBREMBHRKE
RESAFEREEBREMER 2%
mZMERER  ARZERSHRE
ERUWHRERIYE -

BEBUBHEERE 139 — A-FE
T8
BEFBREEAFE 13RA R E b ER
ERFAFFATERFNOERTER
HE—RRIES] - ZEAEBRRIRAF
B EZWBLIEMBRE  LSIAR
FEFESFH - WAFEFERZ =ER
BEBR/AR LEBBMBHRELAF7
SIMBTA : RE] 8- BEFBER
EEAF1IBRAERAFERTHLEE
ZENHERREREFR ST HEEE
AU B R B B 2 B (BIF R
B) - 2 ERGIRERYBEERRBER
mBTSAREARBEREZRE © B
MRZHE  BRAEEZEREANR
RERRBABRATZAFEZER - &
HAINEBFABRBERTE  DFVBR
REAETEABRTESHFATER
WABE  URDATVEFEHUBHRE
ZEE BAMBREEF 1B AR
RIERAR - WASERTIEER -



CHINA INVESTMENT DEVELOPMENT LIMITED HER &M Z AR T

ANNUAL REPORT $# 2013

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. Adoption of Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (continued)
HKAS 19 (2011) — Employee Benefits

HKAS 19 (2011) provides additional guidance on the
definition of termination benefits. Benefits that are
conditional on future service being provided including
those that increase if additional service is provided are not
termination benefits. The revised standard requires that a
liability for termination benefits is recognised on the earlier
of the date when the entity can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits and the date the entity recognises
any related restructuring costs. This could lead to later
recognition of voluntary termination benefits in some
cases. The amendments will generally be applied
retrospectively with two exceptions.

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS
27 (2011) — Investment Entities

The amendments apply to a particular class of businesses
that qualify as investment entities. An investment entity’s
business purpose is to invest funds solely for returns from
capital appreciation, investment income or both. It
evaluates the performance of its investments on a fair
value basis. Investment entities could include private
equity organisations, venture capital organisations,
pension funds and investment funds.

The amendments provide an exception to the
consolidation requirements in HKFRS 10 Consolidated
Financial Statements and require investment entities to
measure particular subsidiaries at fair value through profit
or loss rather than to consolidate them. The amendments
also set out the disclosure requirements for investment
entities. The amendments are applied retrospectively
subject to certain transitional provisions.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
the potential impact of these pronouncements. The
directors so far concluded that the application of these
new pronouncements will have no material impact on the
Group’s financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE_T—=F=RA=1+—HILFE

3.

Prior Year Adjustments

In preparing the consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31 March 2013, the management of the
Company had revisited the facts and circumstances associated
with the acquisition of convertible bonds, disposal of its
investment in Asia Light Limited (“Asia Light”) and its subsidiary
and classification of other comprehensive income and identified
certain necessary adjustments in recording the above
acquisition of convertible bonds and disposal of investment in
Asia Light and its subsidiary in previous year’s consolidated
financial statements. The financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2012 have been restated to correct these
errors. The effect of the restatements in the consolidated
statement of financial position of the Group, the statement of
financial position of the Company and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income of the Group are
summarised below:

(@ Reclassification, recognition and revaluation of

investments in convertible bonds

(i) In September 2011, the Company has invested the
convertible bonds and classified them as available-
for-sales financial assets. The investments have the
conversion option which represented an embedded
option written by the issuers on their equity shares.
The Company incorrectly included the conversion
option as available-for-sale financial assets and the
change of fair value of the embedded option has
been recognised in investment revaluation reserve.
The management of the Company has revisited the
reclassification of the convertible bonds. The
investments in the convertible bonds have been
spilt between debt components and embedded
derivatives components. The debt portions of the
convertible bonds are designated upon initial
recognition as available-for-sale financial assets.
The embedded conversion options are derivatives
and are included in financial assets at fair value
though profit or loss and recognised at fair value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. Prior Year Adjustments (continued)

(@)

Reclassification, recognition and revaluation of

investments in convertible bonds (continued)

(i) ~ The Company has not remeasured the fair value of
the investment in convertible bonds as at 31 March
2012. The management of the Company has
revisited the fair value of the investments in
convertible bonds and measured the fair value of
the investments in convertible bonds including debt
components and embedded derivatives
components, with reference to the professional
valuer.

The effect of the restatement on the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income is to increase the fair
value gain by HK$1,593,000 in other comprehensive
income for revaluation of the debt components and to
increase the fair value loss by HK$1,506,000 in profit or
loss on the embedded derivatives components. The effect
of the restatement on the consolidated and Company
statements of financial position is to decrease the
available-for-sale financial assets by HK$2,889,000 and
to increase the financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss by HK$2,976,000.

Presentation of disposal of investment in Asia
Light and its subsidiary as a discontinued
operation

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the management
of the Company has presented the disposal of investment
in Asia Light and its subsidiary as a discontinued
operation. The management of the Company has revisited
the presentation of the disposal of the investment in Asia
Light and its subsidiary and concluded that the investment
is not a separate line of business and does not represent
a discontinued operation as the principal activity of Asia
Light and its subsidiary was to hold a single equity
investment which was accounted for as an available-for-
sale financial asset in the consolidated statement of
financial position. The transaction is regarded as a
disposal of asset and its associated liabilities in the normal
course of the Company’s continuing investment
operations. There is no impact on the Group’s loss for the
year ended 31 March 2012.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE_T—=F=RA=1+—HILFE

3. Prior Year Adjustments (continued)

(©

Reclassification of release of investment
revaluation reserve upon disposal of available-
for-sale financial assets to other comprehensive
income

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the management
of the Company has not presented the release of
investment revaluation reserve upon disposal of available-
for-sale financial assets in other comprehensive income.
The management of the Company has reclassified the
release of investment revaluation reserve upon disposal of
available-for-sale financial assets in other comprehensive
income properly.

The effect of the restatement on the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income is to increase the
other comprehensive income of HK$875,000.

The above prior year adjustments do not have financial effects

on the consolidated and Company statements of financial

position on 1 April 2011. Accordingly, the consolidated and

Company statements of financial position as at 1 April 2011 are

not presented.

3.

=
©

—FERE(F)

ENTERNEETHENBEER
HREEMFFRERZAMEZENR

3¢
iy

BE-_T-——_H=-A=+t—BLFE"
ARRERELELINHEN HER

BEERBREEMHEERZHEME
EHam ARARERELZRENDER
HEAHENBEERHRESHRE
R M2 -

BIREEARSRZEE AL
U %512 41 875,000 7 7T ©

H 2|

R T \_z——imﬂ—

BziEaR
I -

REMBEIRRARERP T E
TEEIN-F——FMWA—R Zﬁ\a

RAABAHRRE



CHINA INVESTMENT DEVELOPMENT LIMITED HER &M Z AR T

ANNUAL REPORT $# 2013

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ok 1 YA 0 A B ik

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE-_ZT—=F=A=1+—HILFE

3. Prior Year Adjustments (continued) 3.
The effects of the restatement for each statement line item
affected in respect of the year ended 31 March 2012 are
summarised as follows:

L-FERR(E)
BIBE-T-—FZAS+-BLFEER
SYEAR Y EHAMT :

BE-ZE——F=A=+—HLH
ErHGearElER

() Consolidated statement of comprehensive 0]
income for the year ended 31 March 2012

Before Restated
restatements Restatements balances
E5lA 7l e
HK$'000 HK$'000 Notes HK$'000
AL TR p AT
Revenue WA 748 2,038 (b) 2,786
Other income R ON 1,209 1,209
Change in fair value of financial assets A TFE AEBREEL
at fair value through profit or loss BBEELNTES (250) (1,506) (a) (1,756)
Gain on redemption of convertible bonds & [Bl A]#k (&35 7 Uiz 5,393 5,393
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE-FIMBA R 2 Wz 1 1
Administrative expenses THRX (14,240) (1,007) () (15,247)
Finance costs BAERA (148) (148)
Share of loss of an associate ME—FEEARZER (6) 6)
Loss before income tax expense BREGHASAIESR (7,293) (7,768)
Income tax expense FEHEY - -
Profit for the year from discontinued BRIHEE R 2 RER BT
operations 1,031 (1,031) (b) -
Loss for the year attributable to TRAEEANEETEESE
owners of the Company (6,262) (7,768)
Other comprehensive income: Hiv2EkE
Exchange difference arising from TEE-FHBAREEY
a subsidiary during the year ] 334 334
Change in fair value of available-for- AHENBEEZ N FHEE
sale financial assets (319) 1,593 (@) 1,278
Release of investment revaluation HETHENBEERER
reserve upon disposal of available- REEMHRE
for-sale financial assets - 875 (© 875
Other comprehensive income for AEEHEME2ENE - MREE
the year, net of tax 19 2,487
Total comprehensive income for the year A E 2 H &A% (6,243) (5,281)
Loss per share ERER
— Basic (HK cents per share) — BEAR(SR#W) (1.01) (1.25)
— Diluted (HK cents per share) — BB (BREI) (1.01) (1.25)
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3. Prior Year Adjustments (continued) 3.

(i) Consolidated statement of financial position as (ii)

at 1 April 2012

AR R

Before Restated

restatements Restatements balances

7)) 23l ERTE-

HK$'000 HK$'000 Notes HK$'000

TAT TAT =2 TAT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAHE
Non-current assets FRBEE

Property, plant and equipment ME - BEREE 2,837 2,837
Interest in an associate R—FBE AR ER 6,074 6,074
Available-for-sale financial assets AHENBEE 18,185 (2,889) )] 15,296
27,096 24,207
Current assets RBEE
Financial assets at fair value through BOTEMAEERREL
profit or loss BEEE 614 2,976 (a) 3,590
Other receivables, deposits and HAEYGE ke R
prepayments IENE 3,317 3,317
Amount due from a shareholder e — &R B 3,884 3,884
Bank and cash balances RILASER 5,954 5,954
13,769 16,745
Assets of a disposal group classified as DA AR ELE 2 HEARR
held for sale ZEE 4,377 4377
18,146 21,122
Current liabilities RBSE
Other payables and accrued charges Bt ENTUE R E & A 1,204 1,224
Liabilties of a disposal group classified A ARELE 2 HERR
as held for sale ZaE 2,008 2,008
3,232 3,232
Net current assets REBEEFE 14,914 17,890
Net assets EEERE 42,010 42,097
EQUITY ER
Share capital WA 6,303 6,303
Share premium RiDRE 53,048 53,948
Investment revaluation reserve REERHE (319) 1,693 (a) 1,278
Share option reserve BlRiERE 4730 4730
Exchange reserve EHERE 5,049 5,049
Accumulated losses ZEtER (27,705) (1,506) (@) (29,211)
Total equity EHAE 42,010 42,007




CHINA INVESTMENT DEVELOPMENT LIMITED HER &M Z AR T

3. Prior Year Adjustments (continued)
Statement of financial position as at 1 April

(i)

3. F—5ERER#E)

(i)

2012
Before
restatements
EL]
HK$'000
THT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERER
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ER R 2,837
Investment in subsidiaries RIBAR 2 KE 2
Available-for-sale financial assets HENKEE 18,185
21,024
Current assets REEE
Financial assets at fair value through BOTEMAEERREY
profit or loss HBEE 614
Amounts due from subsidiaries WP B ARIFE 36,195
Other recelvables, deposit and Hi YR e R
prepayments BRHE 3,317
Amount due from a shareholder F Hﬁl BREFE 3,884
Bank and cash balances RIRBEET 5,779
49,789
Current liabilities REBE
Other payables and accrued charges EfENTIERESER 1,224
Amount due to a subsidiary BN —RMBLRIE 32,782
34,006
Net current assets RBEEFE 15,783
Net assets BEFE 36,807
EQUITY B
Share capital BRA 6,303
Share premium BRiIVEE 53,948
Investment revaluation reserve REEMRRE (319)
Share option reserve BIRERE 4,730
Accumulated losses 2iER (27,859)
Total equity BREaE 36,807
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
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REZZE-ZFHA—-HZHHERR

=

Restatements

B3l

HK$'000

(2,889)

2,976

1,593

(1,506)

Notes
st

(a)
(@)

Restated
balances
e
HK$'000
BT

2,837

15,296

18,135

3,590
36,195

3,317

3,884
5,779

52,765

1,224
32,782

34,006
18,759

36,894
6,303
53,948
1,278

4,730
(29,365)

36,894
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
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4. Basis of Preparation

(@)

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable HKFRSs, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”).

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost basis except for
available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss, which are measured at fair
values as explained in the accounting policies set out in
note 5 below.

Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (‘HK$”). Each entity in the Group
maintains its books and records in its own functional
currency. The functional currency of the Company is HKS$.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(@)

Business combination and basis of
consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”). Inter-company transactions and balances
between group companies together with unrealised
profits are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of impairment
on the asset transferred, in which case the loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the dates of acquisition or
up to the effective dates of disposal, as appropriate.
Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with those used by other members of the
Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted for
using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is
measured at the aggregate of the acquisition-date fair
value of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and equity
interests issued by the Group, as the acquirer. The
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are
principally measured at acquisition-date fair value. The
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
re-measured at acquisition-date fair value and the
resulting gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss.
The Group may elect, on a transaction-by-transaction
basis, to measure the non-controlling interests that
represent present ownership interests in the subsidiary
either at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other non-controlling
interests are measured at fair value unless another
measurement basis is required by HKFRSs. Acquisition-
related costs incurred are expensed unless they are
incurred in issuing equity instruments in which case the
costs are deducted from equity.
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5. EASHHEME
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE-Z—=F=A=+—HLFE

5. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

(@)

Business combination and basis of
consolidation (continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair value.
Subsequent adjustments to consideration are recognised
against goodwill only to the extent that they arise from
new information obtained within the measurement period
(@ maximum of 12 months from the acquisition date)
about the fair value at the acquisition date. All other
subsequent adjustments to contingent consideration
classified as an asset or a liability are recognised in profit
or loss.

Contingent consideration balances arising from business
combinations whose acquisition dates preceded 1
January 2010 (i.e. the date the Group first applied HKFRS
3 (2008)) have been accounted for in accordance with the
transition requirements in the standard. Such balances
are not adjusted upon first application of the standard.
Subsequent revisions to estimates of such consideration
are treated as adjustments to the cost of these business
combinations and are recognised as part of goodwill.

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s
interest and the non-controlling interest are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which
the non-controlling interest is adjusted and the fair value
of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly
in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between (i)
the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and (i)
the previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-
controlling interest. Amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary
are accounted for in the same manner as would be
required if the relevant assets or liabilities were disposed
of.

5.

EXEHHREBE(E)

@

EBEHRGEREE(E)

W77 % T8 R 2 (M S AR E R
Bz EER HREKEZRHE
ERAERENAER(HRE/KERH
HET 18 F) AFTEYS A R IR A
ZAFEZHERE  FUBEER -
MBEREMYBREEXRBEZUARNRE
ZEBRFHEANBRPER

WEAHRR-Z-—ZTF-A—REIRE
BEREATEMHEREENEINR(=
ZTN\F) 2B A2 EB A AEL
ZHEARBEBRORIBEZER 2 BER
FEAFR © BRI B IR ERZERR
WARIEAE - RRUBAKERT 2
AIERERERT A HRAZ AREE -
WHHERREE 28D -

AEENMBRARZ EEZ S MY EE
BAREENE AARINGEZERS -
AEBEER IR ES 2 REES T
HE - ARBREZERMEAR 2 EE
HE) o BRI R S R EN
HAARREBAFEZEMER  DHEE
REETHER  YHEBRARBEEA -

MARBEREMB LR Z =g HE
BRERTIMEZEZREAE ()T
BREZATFEETAREER AT
BB RiZHBRARZEE (B
BE) LA REREAFERREERE R
E{E ° BERZM B A RN E M2
aRAZKARHERREERAGER
PR 2 HRTT A58 -



CHINA INVESTMENT DEVELOPMENT LIMITED HER &M Z AR T

ANNUAL REPORT $# 2013

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

(@)

Business combination and basis of
consolidation (continued)

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those interests
at initial recognition plus such non-controlling interest’s
share of subsequent changes in equity. Total
comprehensive income is attributed to such non-
controlling interests even if this results in those non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity over which the Company is able
to exercise control. Control is achieved where the
Company, directly or indirectly, has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to
obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing control,
potential voting rights that are presently exercisable are

taken into account.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor a
joint venture. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but not control or joint control over those
policies. Associates are accounted for using the equity
method whereby they are initially recognised at cost and
thereafter, their carrying amount are adjusted for the
Group’s share of the post-acquisition change in the
associates’ net assets except that losses in excess of the
Group’s interest in the associate are not recognised
unless there is an obligation to make good those losses.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
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5. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

(©)

Associates (continued)

Profits and losses arising on transactions between the
Group and its associates are recognised only to the
extent of unrelated investors’ interests in the associate.
The investor’s share in the associate’s profits and losses
resulting from these transactions is eliminated against the
carrying value of the associate.

Any premium paid for an associate above the fair value of
the Group’s share of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities acquired is capitalised and included
in the carrying amount of the associate and the entire
carrying amount of the investment is subject to
impairment test, by comparing the carrying amount with
its recoverable amount, which is higher of value in use
and fair value less costs to sell.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investment in an associate is carried at cost less
impairment losses, if any. The result of an associate is
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable during the year.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its
purchase price and the costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All
other repairs and maintenance are recognised as an
expense in profit or loss during the financial period in
which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

(d)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as to
write off their cost net of expected residual value over
their estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The
useful lives, residual value and depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period. The useful lives are as follows:

Over the shorter of the
lease term or 4 years

Leasehold improvement

Furniture and fixture 5 years
Office equipment 5 years
Computer equipment 5 years

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s
estimated recoverable amount.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant
and equipment is the difference between the net sale
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset,
and is recognised in profit or loss on disposal.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

The total rentals payable under the operating leases are
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the lease term. Lease incentives received are recognised
as an integrated part of the total rental expenses, over the
terms of the leases.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE-Z—=F=A=+—HLFE

5. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)
Financial instruments

()

(i)

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets at initial
recognition, depending on the purpose for which
the asset was acquired. Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are initially measured at fair
value and all other financial assets are initially
measured at fair value plus transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial assets. Regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. A regular way purchase or
sale is a purchase or sale of a financial asset under
a contract whose terms require delivery of the asset
within the time frame established generally by
regulation or convention in the marketplace
concerned.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

These assets include financial assets held for
trading and financial assets designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if
they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near
term. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as held for trading
unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments or financial guarantee contracts.

Where a contract contains one or more embedded
derivatives, the entire hybrid contract may be
designated as a financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss, except where the embedded
derivative does not significantly modify the cash
flows or it is clear that separation of the embedded
derivative is prohibited.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)
()  Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(continued)

Financial assets may be designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss if
the following criteria are met: (i) the designation
eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent
treatment that would otherwise arise from
measuring the assets or recognising gains or losses
on them on a different basis; (i) the assets are part
of a group of financial assets which is managed and
its performance evaluated on a fair value basis
according to a documented management strategy;
or (iii) the financial asset contains an embedded
derivative that would need to be separately
recorded.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair
value, with changes in fair value recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise.

Loans and receivables

These assets are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. They incorporate other types of
contractual monetary asset. Subsequent to initial
recognition, they are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses.

Available-for-sale financial assets

These assets are non-derivative financial assets that
are designated as available-for-sale or are not
included in other categories of financial assets.
Subsequent to initial recognition, these assets are
carried at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in other comprehensive income, except
for impairment losses and foreign exchange gains
and losses on monetary instruments, which are
recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
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5. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)
()  Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

(i)

Financial assets (continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets (continued)

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not
have a quoted market price in an active market and
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured and
derivatives that are linked to and must be settled by
delivery of such unquoted equity instruments, they
are measured at cost less any identified impairment
losses.

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group assesses, at the end of each reporting
period, whether there is any objective evidence that
financial asset is impaired. Financial asset is
impaired if there is objective evidence of impairment
as a result of one or more events that has occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset and that
event has an impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset that can be reliably
estimated. Evidence of impairment may include:

o significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

o a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

° granting concession to a debtor because of
debtor’s financial difficulty;

° a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of an investment in equity investment
below its cost; and

o it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.
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5. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)
()  Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets (continued)
For loans and receivables

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
when there is objective evidence that the asset is
impaired, and is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the original effective interest rate. The
carrying amount of financial asset is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. When any
part of financial asset is determined as uncollectible,
it is written off against the allowance account for the
relevant financial asset.

For available-for-sale financial assets

Where a decline in the fair value constitutes
objective evidence of impairment, the amount of the
loss is removed from equity and recognised in profit
or loss.

Any impairment losses on available-for-sale debt
investments are subsequently reversed in profit or
loss if an increase in the fair value of the investment
can be objectively related to an event occurring
after the recognition of the impairment loss.

For available-for-sale equity investment, any
increase in fair value subsequent to an impairment
loss is recognised in other comprehensive income.

For available-for-sale equity investment that is
carried at cost, the amount of impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the carrying
amount of the asset and the present value of
estimated future cash flows discounted at the
current market rate of return for a similar financial
asset. Such impairment loss is not reversed.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
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5. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

()

(i)

(iv)

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending
on the purpose for which the liabilities were
incurred. Financial liabilities at amortised costs are
initially measured at fair value, net of directly
attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including other
payables and accrued charge, other borrowing and
amounts due to directors and subsidiaries are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method. The related interest
expense is recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through
the amortisation process.

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds issued by the Company that
contain both the liability and conversion option
components are classified separately into their
respective items on initial recognition. Conversion
option that will be settled by the exchange of a fixed
amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed
number of the Company’s own equity instruments
is classified as an equity instrument.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability
component is determined using the prevailing
market interest rate of similar non-convertible debts.
The difference between the gross proceeds of the
issue of the convertible bonds and the fair value
assigned to the liability component, representing the
conversion option for the holder to convert the
bonds into equity, is included in convertible bonds
equity reserve.
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5. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)
()  Financial instruments (continued)

(iv)

(v)

Convertible bonds (continued)

In subsequent periods, the liability component of
convertible bonds is carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. The conversion option
classified as equity will remain in the convertible
bonds equity reserve until the conversion option is
exercised, in which case, the balance stated in the
convertible bonds equity reserve will be transferred
to share premium. Where the conversion option
remains unexercised at the maturity date, the
balance stated in the convertible bonds equity
reserve will be released to accumulated losses. No
gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss upon
conversion or expiration of the conversion option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible bonds are allocated to the liability and
conversion option components in proportion to the
allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction costs
relating to the conversion option component are
recognised directly in equity. Transaction costs
relating to the liability component are included in the
carrying amount of the liability component and are
amortised over the lives of the convertible bonds
using the effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or
financial liability and of allocating interest income or
interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts or
payments through the expected life of the financial
asset or liability, or where appropriate, a shorter
period.
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5. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

()

(vi)

(vii)

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the future cash flows in relation
to the financial asset expire or when the financial
asset has been transferred and the transfer meets
the criteria for derecognition in accordance with
HKAS 39.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Where the Group issues its own equity instruments
to a creditor to settle a financial liability in whole or
in part as a result of renegotiating the terms of that
liability, the equity instruments issued are the
consideration paid and are recognised initially and
measured at their fair value on the date the financial
liability or part thereof is extinguished. If the fair
value of the equity instruments issued cannot be
reliably measured, the equity instruments are
measured to reflect the fair value of the financial
liability extinguished. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability or part
thereof extinguished and the consideration paid is
recognised in profit or loss for the year.
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5. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

(),

Non-current assets held for sale and disposal
groups

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as
held for sale when:

° they are available for immediate sale;
° management is committed to a plan to sell;

° it is unlikely that significant changes to the plan will
be made or that the plan will be withdrawn;

° an active programme to locate a buyer has been
initiated;

° the asset or disposal group is being marketed at a
reasonable price in relation to its fair value; and

° a sale is expected to complete within 12 months
from the date of classification.

Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held
for sale are measured at the lower of:

° their carrying amount immediately prior to being
classified as held for sale in accordance with the
Group’s accounting policy; and

° fair value less costs to sell.
Following their classification as held for sale, non-current

assets (including those in a disposal group) are not
depreciated.

5.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
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5. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

()

72

Share-based payments

Where share options are awarded to employees and
others providing similar services that are vested at the
date of grant, the fair value of the share options granted is
expensed immediately to profit or loss with a
corresponding increase in the share option reserve within
equity.

When the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will be
transferred to share premium. When the share options are
forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at
the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in
share options reserve will be transferred to accumulated
profit or loss.

Impairment of other assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of the following assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss or an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

° property, plant and equipment; and
° investments in subsidiaries and an associate

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of fair value less
costs to sell and value in use) of an asset is estimated to
be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, to the extent that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately.
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5. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

0)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which
require a substantial period of time to be ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. Income earned on temporary investments
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on those
assets is deducted from borrowing costs capitalised. All
other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Provision

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, which will
probably result in an outflow of economic benefits that
can be reasonably estimated.

Related parties

(@ A person or a close member of that person’s family
is related to the Group if that person:
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of key management personnel of
the Group or the Company’s parent.

Aok BB A i

For the year ended 31 March 2013
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5. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Related parties (continued)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the

(1)

74

following conditions apply:

U)

(vi)

(vil)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of the employees of the Group
or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of key
management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).
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5.

CHINA INVESTMENT DEVELOPMENT LIMITED HER &M Z AR T

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

() Related parties (continued)
Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity
and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

(i)  dependents of that person or that person’s spouse
or domestic partner.

Critical Accounting Judgements and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of reporting period that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year are discussed below.

Depreciation and amortisation

The Group depreciates the property, plant and equipment over
their estimated useful lives and after taking into account their
estimated residual values, using the straight line method. The
estimated useful lives reflect the directors’ estimate of the
periods that the Group intends to derive future economic
benefits from the use of the Group’s property, plant and
equipment. The residual values reflect the directors’ estimated
amount that the Group would currently obtain from disposal of
the asset, after deducting the estimated costs of disposal, if the
assets were already of the age and in the condition expected at
the end of its useful life.
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6.

Critical Accounting Judgements and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (continued)
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts

The Group’s provision policy for bad and doubtful debts is
based on the evaluation of collectability and ageing analysis of
accounts and on management’s judgement. A considerable
amount of judgement is required in assessing the ultimate
realisation of these receivables, including the current
creditworthiness and the past collection history of each
customer. If the financial conditions of customers of the Group
were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability to
make payments, additional allowance may be required.

Impairment of available-for-sale investments

In determining whether there is objective evidence of impairment
in relation to the Group’s available-for-sale investments in
unlisted debt securities, the Group takes into consideration of
the current market environment and circumstances. Impairment
is recognised based on the present value of estimated future
cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a
similar asset. Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, a material impairment loss may arise.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses impairment at each reporting date by
evaluating conditions specific to the Group that may lead to
impairment of assets. Where an impairment trigger exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is determined. Value-in-use
calculations performed in assessing recoverable amounts
incorporate a number of key estimates and assumptions about
future events, which are subject to uncertainty and might
materially differ from the actual results. In making these key
estimates and judgements, the directors take into consideration
assumptions that are mainly based on market condition existing
at the reporting date and appropriate market and discount
rates. These estimates are regularly compared to actual market
data and actual transactions entered into by the Group.

76
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Segment Information

An operating segment is a component of the Group that is
engaged in business activities from which the Group may earn
revenue and incur expenses, and is identified on the basis of
the internal management reporting information that is provided
to and regularly reviewed by the Group’s chief operating
decision maker in order to allocate resources and assess
performance of the segment. For the years ended 31 March
2013 and 2012, the information reported to the executive
directors, who are the chief operating decision makers for the
purpose of resource allocation and assessment of performance,
do not contain profit or loss information of each business line or
geographical area and the executive directors reviewed the
financial result of the Group as a whole reported under
HKFRSs. Therefore, the executive directors have determined
that the Group has only one single business component/
reportable segment as the Group is only engaged in investment
holding. The executive directors allocate resources and assess
performance on an aggregated basis. Accordingly, no operating
segment is presented.

The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s revenue
and non-current assets including property, plant and equipment
and interest in an associate (i.e. “specified non-current assets”)
by geographical locations, determined based on physical
location of the assets or location of operations in case of
interest in an associate, is as follows:

external customers

7.

Revenue from
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
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Specified

non-current assets

REMREFEZWA BEFRBEE
2013 2012 2013
—E—= —F——F —ZEB-—=fF
HK$’000 HK$'000  HK$’000 HK$’000
FTER FABT FHT FHET
Hong Kong (place of domicile) & (XM ®:) 764 748 1,428 2,837
Other regions of the People’'s A2 A BB L AN E] E fib
Republic of China (the “PRC”)  #b[& ([ E |) - - 6,104 6,074
Korea 2451 - 2,038 - -
764 2,786 7,532 8,911




CHINA INVESTMENT DEVELOPMENT LIMITED FE&R &M ZE TR T

ANNUAL REPORT $# 2013

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
s o U 05 R i

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HEz—Z—=F=-A=+—HLHFE

8. Revenue and Other Income 8. WARHMKA
Group
K&
2013 2012
—E—= —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHEIT
(Restated)
==270))
Revenue: L ONE
Interest income from available-for-sale AT EFBEE 2T BUWA
financial assets 764 2,786
Other income: EmUgA
Waive of other payables o H e F0E 1,650 -
Over-provision of expenses F S B RE 40 200
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HERHERBEE 2 W
financial assets - 1,008
Bank interest income RITHI B UA - 1
1,690 1,209
Total revenue and other income OSSN L 2,454 3,995

REE 2 WA AHRBRES ZFBWA =
E=FRIE—_F  TEEBKRARRS
AEBEZWAELER

B A

The Group’s revenue represents interest income from
convertible bonds. No other source of income contributed to
the Group’s revenue for both 2013 and 2012.

9. Finance Costs 9.

Group
rEE
2013 2012
T F
HK$’000
FAT

—E—=F
HK$’000
FET

Interest on borrowings wholly repayable HARAFHNEHREEZEEFR

within five years:

Interest expenses FERZ 40 -
Interest expense on convertible bonds AIBREREER B - 63
Imputed interest on convertible bonds AR EREET S = 85
Total finance costs B E R A B RE 40 148
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10. Income Tax Expense
Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 16.5% (2012: 16.5%) on
the estimated assessable profits for the year. Overseas tax is
calculated at the rates applicable in the respective jurisdictions.
No provision for income tax expense is required since the
Group has no assessable profits either arising from Hong Kong
or other jurisdictions during the year (2012: Nil).

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the
loss before income tax expense per consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as follows:

A1 B R B ik

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE-_ZT—=F=A=1+—HILFE

10. FISHiAX
BRI BT T AN FE A ERT R A%
16.5% (—ZZF— —F : 16.5%) 1 & - HINFI 1B
REMEREERBAMETE - ARAEBRR
AEFWEREEESH M) ERR 2 R
w=H MBS RAYREE(ZE—=
FoMmE)o

AEEMBRAX HREA 2EKER ARG
MFAXATEEZ SR T

Group
RE
2013
—E—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHE T T
(Restated)
(&31)
Loss before income tax expense BrPTiS T SR E R (8,972) (7,768)
Tax calculated at the domestic income tax BTSRRI 16.5%
rate of 16.5% (2012: 16.5%) —T——4F :16.5%)
STE IR (1,480) (1,282)
Tax effect of share of results of an associate ~ Dfh—K¥=Z A a2
KEIHBEE 6 1
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for TR MMFES 2 RS2
tax purpose 14 1,036
Tax effect of revenue not taxable for BAERBBA 2 RIS E
tax purpose (787) (1,057)
Tax effect of temporary differences not AERELGERH MG E
recognised 324 148
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERBIEEEB 2 HIETE 1,923 1,154

PSR

Income tax expense

No deferred tax liability has been recorded on temporary
differences of approximately HK$3,119,000 (2012:
approximately HK$1,154,000) relating to accelerated tax
depreciation as the tax effect of the temporary difference is
immaterial to the Group.

At the end of reporting period, the Group had unused tax losses
of approximately HK$43,477,000 (2012: approximately
HK$31,822,000) available for offset against future profits that
may be carried forward indefinitely. No deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of the unused tax losses due to
unpredictability of future profit streams.

HRERERZHBFEHAEEM S LT E
R B EABREIERRIANT E 2 TR EFEL
3,119,000 T (=T — Z 4 : #1,154,000/%
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TR IE BT 1849 543,477,000 T (—ZE — -4 :
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1. RASHRMAXAER
P4k B9 5 B 2 A A HRAT 1B T 51060 -

11. Loss Before Income Tax Expense
Loss before income tax expense is stated after charging the

following:
Group
A
2013 2012
—E-=F =T F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET T
(RES )]
(&%)
Staff costs 8T
Salaries e 301 520

Provident fund contributions

EIES MR 13 11

Equity-settled share-based payment RSB H R = 113
Total staff costs excluding directors’ 8 TR AN4258

remunerations (TBIEESRS) 314 644
Auditor’s remuneration ZEREN N & 260 320
Impairment loss of property, WE - BEK&

plant and equipment REREEE 730 -
Depreciation e 1,399 837
Directors’ remuneration (note 15) EEZME (HI5E15) 2,171 3,856
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME - BE X

equipment By =] = 63
Equity-settled share-based payment TR A DRI 30

Directors (note 15) % (f1sE15) - 1,652

Employee BB _ 113

Consultants Fafd - 2,965
Total Equity-settled share-based payment R EE RO N B - 4,730
Investment managers’ fee WEEIRER 701 569
Rent and rates e K Em 7,953 2,279
Written off of property, plant and equipment 5% % « BE M&EiE 13 -
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13.

14.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
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Dividend 12. ®RE
The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend BEEfEEMEBE—_T—=F=A=+—H81t

for the year ended 31 March 2013 (2012: Nil).

FERNERARB(ZE—ZF:8) -

Loss for the Year Attributable to Owners of 13. XAFFEEAEMKEEEE

the Company

Loss attributable to shareholders includes an amount of RRELBEBEEERAR BT BRETERIE
HK$15,020,000 (2012: HK$8,750,000, as restated) which has #915,020,000 7T ( =& — =4 : 8,750,000/
been dealt with in the financial statements of the Company. JL KEES) o

Loss Per Share 14. BREE

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share AAFEBESFAEABRGZEREARREE
attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the Company is BB TIRE A T 8RTE -

based on the following data:

Group
KE
2013 2012
—F—= —E——4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FATT
(Restated)
(&%)
Loss 5% ]
Loss for the year attributable to owners of ARFTESRERRES
the Company for the purposes of basic =581= WA N/NETE ¥ =N
and diluted loss per share [EIE A FEEE (8,972) (7,768)
Number of shares B A

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
for the purposes of basic and diluted loss

ARG EERERREE
18 7 i RN P 15 e 2K

per share 630,410,760 622,031,582
No diluted loss per share has been presented as the potential AR B ARITE R BIRERT S k2 B EBReE
ordinary share in respect of outstanding share options is anti- EEREERE QWU EESGRETFEESE -

dilutive effect for both years.
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15. Directors’ and Five Highest Paid Individuals’ 15. EERAERaHFATZ#HE

Emoluments

(a) Directors (@ ==
The aggregate amount of emoluments payable by the REBRAREEERNMS @M -
Group during the year is as follows:

2013 2012
—_ZT—= —E——4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T
Fees we
— Executive directors — HITES 522 726
— Non-executive directors — JEHITES 231 243
— Independent non-executive directors ~ — &7 IEHITEE 686 656
1,439 1,625
Basic salaries and other benefits EXFHE REAMEF 717 568
Contributions to retirement benefit scheme :ER1g FllzHEIH R 15 I
Equity-settled share-based payment EmEE RGO TR - 1,652
2,171 3,856
No directors had waived any emoluments and no RAFE  BEEEHETEMHES -
emoluments were paid to the directors as inducement to mEAEEZNEMNMNE  (ERZEVEN
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss ARKE SR MARRE R 2 520 © oK
of office during the year (2012: Nil). fERBERME(CE——F /) -
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15. Directors’ and Five Highest Paid Individuals’ 15. EERAEZESHFA LT ZEHE (E)
Emoluments (continued)

(a) Directors (continued) @ E=E)
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the ten (2012: ENSESTR(ZE—ZF: +£8)
seventeen) directors are as follows: BEEzMemT

2013
—E-=F
Salaries  Contribution

and other  toretirement  Share-based

Fees benefit scheme payment Total
e HERHMEN BASTHER MR A 5% @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER THR THER TR THER
Executive directors HITES

Chan Cheong Yee (note (j) BEZ (FE() 202 = = = 202
Liu Hui (note (i) 203 (= i) 80 - - - 80
Wong Chak Keung =28 240 "7 15 - 972

Non-executive directors FHTES
Chen Yibiao (note i) PRZEAZ (3% (i) 1 - - - 1
Deng Li (note (iv) 80 (M3E ) 220 - - - 220
Lin Song fote ) AR - - - : :

Independent non-executive By FHTES

directors
Fong Wo, Felix il 240 = o - 240
Leung Wing Kin (note (vi) 2202 (F15E (vi) 186 - - = 186
Lung Chee Ming, George #E788 (Birst i)

fote ) 20 - - - 2
Tang Ping Sum e 240 = 5 - 240

1,439 7 15 - 2,171

Notes: P

i) RZE——FRA-THIBEZFE
Resigned on 1 August 2012 i) RZTE-—_FNA—HBEMHE
Removed on 18 April 2012 iy R-IE-_FHEATN\BHE®

i) Appointed on 29 May 2012 (
(
(
Resigned on 8 March 2013 V) RZF-=F=ZANBEEI
(
(
(

zES

v)  Appointed on 12 September 2012 v) RIZE—Z—ZFNA+=ZHAEZF
vi)  Appointed on 22 June 2012 vi RIE—HFRNAZTHEZE
vi)  Resigned on 1 May 2012 vii RIZE-—_FHA—AFHE
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
BE-FT-=—4-A-t+HLHFE

15. Directors’ and Five Highest Paid Individuals’ 15. EERAEZESHFA LT ZEHE (E)

Emoluments (continued)
(@) Directors (continued) @ ZEE#E)

2012

—=_ —

e —

Salaries Contribution

and other to retirement

Fees benefit scheme
we HeREMEN  RIKGHEIHK
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TEL THL

Share-based

payment
AR 3R
HK$'000
TEL

Total
@t
HK$'000
THL

Executive directors HiTES
A Dol {note () Ann Do Il (HiEE () - - - - -
Kwok Ho On, Anthony (note ()) ~ ZFa1 & (Fif&E () 1 - - - 1
Liu Hui (note (i) I8 (M (i) 237 - - - 237
Mark Damion Go (note (i) Mark Damion Go

GiE0) 25 - - - 25
Tang Hin Keung Affred (note () ~ EB672& (HizE())) 1 - - - 1
Wong Chak Keung (note (i) 2R (L () 237 568 11 713 1,529
Zhang Ying Hui (note (i) R (3 (i) 225 - - - 25
Non-executive directors FHTES
Chen Yibiao (note i) BRZA (BTEE () 237 - - - 237
Deng Li (note (i) B (M) 6 - - 73 9
Independent non-executive ~ BuFHTES

directors
Ba Shusong (note (vi) SENCGEI) 83 - - - 83
Choi Yong Seok (note (i) SR 1 - - - 1
Fong Wo, Felix (note (i) Ha’“ﬂ CiEa0) 237 - - 113 350
Leung Chi Hung (note (v)) 21 (W) 2 - - - 2
Li Man Nang (note (j) ?Fﬁ EAGET) 1 - - - 1
Lung Chee Ming, George BT H (I (i)

(note (vii) % - - - 94
Ngan Woon Man, Eddie (note (v)) &8 (Fit3E (v) 1 - - - 1
Tang Ping Sum (note (i) B () 237 - - 113 350

1,625 568 1 692 3,856
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15. Directors’ and Five Highest Paid Individuals’
Emoluments (continued)

(@) Directors (continued)
Notes:

(i) Resigned on 6 April 2011

(ii) Appointed on 6 April 2011

(i) Appointed on 6 April 2011 and resigned on 15 March
2012

(iv)  Appointed on 23 March 2012

(V) Resigned on 11 April 2011

(v Appointed on 6 April 2011 and resigned on 11 August
2011

(vi)  Appointed on 10 November 2011

The number of directors whose remuneration fell within

the following band is follow:

A1 B R B ik

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE-_ZT—=F=A=1+—HILFE

15. EERTEREHFALTzZME ()

@ EBE#E)
G

(i) RIE——FMANBEE

(ii) RZE——FWOANEERT

(iii RZZE——FMARABZERR=_ZE
——H=A+HB&E

vy W-E——F=A-+=BEZT

v RZZE——FNHA+—HET

vy RZTE——FUANBEZARNZT
——FN\A+—HEE

Vi) RZE——F+—ATHEEZE

HK$nil to HK$1,000,000
HK$1,000,001 to HK$3,000,000

=% 7L % 1,000,000 78 7T 10 16
1,000,001 % 7T & 3,000,000 # 7T -

(b) Five highest paid individuals’ emoluments
The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals (2012:
five) (which include 5 directors (2012: 2)) were as follows:

b) EEE&ESHFALZME
EH(CZE——%: 1%) (HheiEns
(ZZ2——F WMRBEF)ESHALZ

BT -
2013 2012
—E—=4F —F——F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FETT
Basic salaries and other benefits EAF e REMET 1,859 1,048
Contributions to retirement benefit scheme iRtk @ F|5T 21 (2 15 11
Equity-settled share-based payment EREE RO AR - 2,965
1,874 4,024




CHINA INVESTMENT DEVELOPMENT LIMITED +ER & ZARALT

ANNUAL REPORT $# 2013

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
s o U 05 R i

For the year ended 31 March 2013
BE-FT-=—4-A-t+HLHFE

15. Directors’ and Five Highest Paid Individuals’ 15. EERAEZESHFA LT ZEHE (E)
Emoluments (continued)

(b)

Five highest paid individuals’ emoluments b) EEESFALZEHME (E)
(continued)

The number of the five highest paid individuals whose MeENTUNTHEZ AGE=H A TE
remuneration fell within the following band is as follow: Bk :

HK$nil to HK$1,000,000 Z 87T 1,000,000 87T 5 4
HK$1,000,001 to HK$3,000,000 1,000,001 87T £ 3,000,000 7 7T =

There was no arrangement under which any of the five RAFE  BERRAR(ZE——F: H
(2012: five) highest paid employees had waived or agreed BB EEERERMATHELRE
to waive any remuneration during the year. EEA NS F] S E R ZHE -

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group RAFE  REBWEREMNESNH
to any of the directors or the highest paid employees as SHRERENEMNME  (ERZEIE N
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as AREB SR IMARE B R 2 52E) - 3
compensation for loss of office. VERBERAIE
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE-_Z—=F=-A=1+—HLHFE

16. Property, Plant and Equipment 16. Y% - BMERRE
Group
A48
Leasehold Furniture Office Computer
improvements and fixture equipment equipment
HEMEEE BRREE BAERE ERRE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT THT T THT
At 31 March 2011 and R-B-—-£=ZA=1-8
1 April 2011 k=B--£MA-H
Cost XAE - 473 68 159 700
Accumulated depreciation ZitiE - (169) (32) (106) (307)
Net carrying amount FEFE - 304 36 53 393

Year ended 31 March 2012 BEZ-2-_F

ZR=t-HLEE

Opening net carrying amount HOERFE - 304 36 53 393
Additions BE 3,466 54 - 20 3,540
Disposals tE - (17) (24) (22) (63)
Flimination on reclassification as BB ARE

held for sale HEBHH - (187) - - (187)
Depreciation FE (693) (99) (12) (33) (837)
Exchange realignment R r - 9 - - 9
Closing net carrying amount HAEmFE 2,778 46 - 18 2,837
At 31 March 2012 and R-B-Z%=A=1+-H

1 April 2012 R-—E-—EMA-H
Cost AR 3,466 52 - 20 3,538
Accumulated depreciation ZitihE (693) (6) - @ (701)
Net carrying amount ERFE 2,773 46 - 18 2,837

Year ended 31 March 2013 H2-E-=%=§

=t-HLEFE

Opening net carrying amount BREFE 2,773 46 - 18 2,837
Additions BE = 3 - - 3
Written off i = @) - ()] (13)
Impairment iE (730) - - - (730)
Depreciation ik (1,386) (10) - @) (1,399)
Closing net carrying amount HARREFE 657 35 - 6 698
At 31 March 2013 R=B-=%=A=1+-H
Cost PAE 3,466 50 - 9 3,525
Accumulated depreciation and ZAMERAE

impairment (2,809) (15) - ) (2,827)
Net carrying amount BHEE 657 35 - 6 698
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
HEz—Z—=F=-A=+—HLHFE

16. Property, Plant and Equipment (continued) 16. W% - MERRE (&)
Company
N
Leasehold Furniture Office Computer
improvements and fixture equipment equipment Total
REMEEE HBRR%EE N EHRE -
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL T T T T
At 31 March 2011 and R-E--§=B=+-H
1 April 2011 k=B--£MA-H
Cost XAE - 25 68 159 252
Accumulated depreciation ZitTE - 4 (32) (106) (142)
Net carrying amount EmFE - 21 36 53 10

Year ended 31 March 2012 HZ-E--%=H

St-HLEE
Opening net carrying amount HURESE - 21 36 53 110
Additions BE 3,466 52 - 20 3,538
Disposals e - (18) (24) (22) 64)
Depreciation ik (693) 9 (12) (33) (747)
Closing net carrying amount HARREFE 2,773 46 - 18 2,837
At 31 March 2012 and R-B-Z%=A=+-H
1 April 2012 k=E--£@A-H

Cost AME 3,466 52 - 20 3,538
Accumulated depreciation 2iE (693) (6) - (2 (701)
Net carrying amount FHEE 2,773 46 - 18 2,837

Year ended 31 March 2013 HZ-Z2-=%=§

=t-HLEE

Opening net carrying amount HOERFE 2,773 46 - 18 2,837
Written off ilfiz = (4) = (©) (13)
Impairment iE (730) - - - (730)
Depreciation ik (1,386) (10) - ) (1,399)
Closing net carrying amount HRERFE 657 32 - 6 695
At 31 March 2013 R-Z-=£=A=+-H
Cost AR 3,466 47 - 9 3,522
Accumulated depreciation and RHNERAE

impairment (2,809) (15) - () (2,827)
Net carrying amount RETE 657 32 - 6 695
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17. Investments in Subsidiaries

Unlisted shares, at cost IE LR - A

A1 B R B ik

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE-_ZT—=F=A=1+—HILFE

17. RMBATZERE

Company
XN T
2013

—8-=
HK$’000
TET

HK$’000
TAT

The particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 March
2013 are as follows:

Issues and
Place and date

ARRAZHBARR-2—=F=A=+—8
2RI :

Attributable equity

fully paid

of incorporation

oE {1 B S 3t R
kB

share capital

BITR

BRRBRA

China Equity Assets Hong Kong HK$1
Holdings Limited
hEREEESE BB 1787
BRAF]
Master Smooth Investment Hong Kong HK$1
Development Limited
BBRREERARAA B 18T
Perfect Worth Investment  British Virgin Islands US$100
Limited (“BVI")
HKBERES 100%7T
([RBAERES])
Smart Access Capital BV USs$100
Limited
REBERES 100%7T

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at

the end of the year or at any time during the year.

interests held by
the Company
PN
PR FEAG IR RE

Direct Indirect

H#E =

100% -

100% -

100% -

100% -

100% -

100% -

Principal
activities

FEER

Investment holding

BB

Investment holding

Investment holding

KRB

Investment holding

% I I X B A 6 2R SR P o] B R AL A AT

EERES
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
BE-T-=4f=A=+—HLFE

18. Interest in an Associate 18. R—FREZE N T 2%
Group
AEE
2013
—EFE—=
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FHIT
Cost of investment in an associate —XKBE QR ZHEKA 6,080 6,080
Exchange differences ER%%‘? 66 -
Share of loss of an associate PME—REE QT 2 EE (42) ©)
6,104 6,074

Details of the associate are as follows:

Issued and

Place of Form of fully paid

incorporation/ business registered

Name of associate operation structure capital

MR, EBEE E#ITR

BEAR R EEM R i HEEMER

Bonicast Construction PRC Corporation Registered

Material (Beijing) RMB10,000,000
Co., Ltd.

SEEEEEMN hE EE AMARSE

(FER)BRAR 10,000,0007T

Note:

(@) The Group is able to exercise significant influence over Bonicast
Construction Material (Beijing) Co., Ltd. because it has the power
to appoint one out of five directors of that company under the

articles of association of that company.

BEAR ZESIT

Percentage
of equity Proportion
held by of voting Principal
the Group power activities
rEE R
Emaok REELH FEXRE
49% 20%  Trading of
(note a) construction
materials
49% 20% BEMEH
(Firzta)
3T
(@ AEEREAUSFREREFZEMHULR) AR
RNANTRERTZE N  RERKNEEAERE
FZATEBERAEZELZ AR RRERTHA
=
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE-_ZT—=F=A=1+—HILFE

18. Interest in an Associate (continued) 18. A—XKE QAT Z2fER (&)
Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s BRAAEFB S NG 2 EERBEEE 0
associate is set out below: T

Group
AEE
2013 2012
—EBE—=F =T F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FH&TT
Total assets BERE 35,022 12,353
Total liabilities BfEERE (22,566) (12)
Net assets BEFE 12,456 12,341

Group’s share of net assets of an associate ~ REE D —FKEtE Qa2

BEFE 6,104 6,074

Group

RE

2013
—E—=

HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET F&TT
Total revenue LNt 44,005 -
Total loss for the year/period NFEHEEBLE (74) (12)
Group’s share of loss of an associate REEIME—REE R A2 EE (36) ©)
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
HEz—Z—=F=-A=+—HLHFE

19. Available-for-sale Financial Assets 19. ATHEMBEE

Group and Company

AEERAKAE
2013 2012
—E—=F —T——F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
THT T
(RES EVE))
(&%)
Investments in convertible bonds TERAIRRES
— debt portion at fair value — BB - mATE - 15,296
Particulars of investments in convertible bonds held by the BE EMBRRE2N EREZAEBRAQER
Group and the Company as at 31 March 2013 and 2012 TR =FRZE-ZF=A=+—HMEE
disclosed pursuant to Chapter 21 of Listing Rules are as BRABRRESFBEOT
follows:

Place of
Name of investee companies incorporation Convertible bonds, at cost Fair value adjustment Carrying value
BEIREAAER AR ER L TRRES  RAAE ATEER REE

2013 2012 2013 2013 2012
ZB-Zf -F--f CZE-=f% Z8-Zf —F--f
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Ti#n T T TAT T A

Babie’s Holdings Limited (note a) BVI - 9,500 - 22 - 9,522
BEERERAR (fita) REARES
Splendid Beauty Holding co., Ltd. BVI - 9,000 - (250) - 8,750
(note b)
RHRSEEXAERERLA  RBERES
(Ft3EDb)
- 18,500 - (228) - 18,272
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19. Available-for-sale Financial Assets (continued)

Notes:

(@)

On 29 September 2011, the Company invested the 8%
unsecured convertible bonds issued by Babie’s Holdings Limited
(“Babie’s”) at a face value of HK$9,500,000, which bear coupon
interest rate of 8% per annum. Babie’s is an investment holding
company and its business is principally engaged in early
childhood education catering for children’s social, emotional and
academic development in the PRC. The convertible bonds due
on 29 September 2015 are convertible into fully paid ordinary
shares of Babie’s with a par value of USD1.00 each at a
conversion price of HK$100,000 per share. The Company can
exercise the conversion at anytime until the maturity date. On 1
June 2012, the convertible bonds in the principal amount of
HK$9,500,000 with accrued interest up to 31 May 2012
amounting to approximately HK$127,000 was fully redeemed by
the issuer.

On 30 September 2011, the Company invested the 8%
unsecured convertible bonds issued by Splendid Beauty Salon
Holding Co., Ltd. (formerly known as Smart Planner Limited)
(“Splendid”) at a face value of HK$9,000,000, which bear coupon
interest rate of 8% per annum. Splendid is an investment holding
company and its business is principally engaged in professional
and quality beauty treatments, services and products in the PRC.
The convertible bonds due on 30 September 2014 are
convertible into fully paid ordinary shares of Splendid with a par
value of USD1.00 each at a conversion price of HK$100,000 per
share. The Company can exercise the conversion at anytime until
the maturity date. On 5 June 2012, the convertible bonds in the
principal amount of HK$9,000,000 with accrued interest up to 5
June 2012 amounting to approximately HK$130,000 was fully
redeemed by the issuer.

Aok BB A i

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE-_ZT—=F=A=1+—HILFE

. THEMBEE(E)

st -

(@

——FhAZt+hB  RRAHRERE
BRAR([B3]) BT 8EEIEMA]
% % EEFEEA9,500,000 4T -
ENEGFEE - ERAREERRA
B HEXZEBARPBRENEZFHZHE
NREHREMRT BEREESHTAZE
R AmBRESN-_ZE—HFAA-THEE
B - Al IR (B &A% 100,000 78 7T 4 86k B 5
BREE1.00ETZHERREBER - AD

BRI RAEHA B AT IR RITTE AR - R=F
—ZF"A—H K&%/9,500,000% T
2 E-T—ZFRA-+—BZAEH
127,000 T2 ATMIREF B HETAZEE
@c

\}

=
=
PR
A3 (&
=]
£

ﬁ*ﬁ%ﬁ%

m—%——inﬁ:+a'$“ﬁ&éﬂmm
HMHEHEZDERA R A & (A B Smart
Planner Limited) ([ B/ ) 217 2 8 [E &K
AA Rk E S - 25 E5 E{E 49,000,000 7%
T REBENKREFESEFE o BHET AR
BIERAR  HEBEBARPEREZER
BEEDHER MBERER - TRREHFN =
T-MFANA=+HEH JRREEGR
100,000 74 7T 5 #pk B A0 B % E AR E E 1.00 3=
T2 B R IR i AR $ BT RAEIEA A AT
o] RS AT R R AR A2 - T——FARA -
$$%%9mommﬁmﬁ%ﬁﬂ T—_fF
NARBZFIEA130,000/8 L2 AT AR ES
EWETAREED -
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
BE-T-=4f=A=+—HLFE

19. JHEMKEE ()

19. Available-for-sale Financial Assets (continued)

Investments in convertible bonds represents investments in
convertible bonds issued by Babie’s and Splendid. The
investments in the convertible bonds have been spilt between
debt components and embedded derivatives components. The
debt portions of the convertible bonds are designated upon
initial recognition as available-for-sale financial assets. The
embedded conversion options are deemed as financial assets
at fair value though profit or loss and recognised at fair value.
The fair value of debt components and the embedded
conversion options as at 31 March 2012 are determined by
reference to the valuation carried out by an external
independent valuer by using Discounted Cash Flow Method

BERARREFEREREZ R BAEES
IZARRES - RERITRRESE D AE
BHORBARTETAID - ATHRKRESZ
EEBORVLEREFETAITHENBE
E o AR B EEWAR BIR AT ES AT
BREEEVBEE  WIRATFERR - &
HBoRBRARABREREN_T—_F=H
=+ — B2 ATETIBE—RING B (S ERD
RANRReFREEZR-_BAPETEEXE
AZEEMETE - BEBASEAT -

and Binominal Option Pricing Model. The inputs are as follows:

Splendid

Share price IRE

Number of shares outstanding RERRGOEE
Discount rate IR =

Dividend yield Hﬁ RS

Risk free rate ‘% ) 2
Volatility 5)3 VPS

The respective debt portion and embedded conversion option
of the convertible bonds issued by Babie’s and Splendid are as

follows:

HK$65,679 78 7T

B

HK$52,9007% 7T

285 210
16.43% 15.54%
0% 0%
0.37% 0.28%
66.06% 67.53%

Embedded conversion

ﬁEI}?}rﬁ BT A MBIES 2 BRER
SRR

Name of investee companies Debt portion option (note 20) Total
BERENAER EHHS WE H R EE (W 20)
2013 2013 2012 2013
“E-=f C-%--f C-E-=f —T--f C-B-=Z% =
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
FHER THTL THET THEx FhT T
Babie’s Holdings Limited AERRERAT - 7,566 - 1,956 - 9,522
Splendid Beauty Holding BHETERER
Co., Ltd. AR - 7,730 - 1,020 - 8,750
- 15,206 - 2,976 - 18,272
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20. Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit
or Loss

20.

A1 B R B ik

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE-_Z—=F=-A=1+—HLHFE

BAVEFACESREECMBEE

Group and Company
FEERAAT

2013

—E—=F

2012
—E——F
HK$’000
FAT
(Restated)
(&%)

HK$’000
FTERT

Hong Kong listed equity securities, BB LETMBRAES

at market value (note a) A (Ksta) 454 614
Investments in convertible bonds TERAIRRES

— embedded conversion option at — NERBEERE -
fair value (note 19) BATE(FEE19) o 2,976

Investments in convertible bonds, at WERATRRES
fair value (note b) BAFE(HEDb) 21,140 -
21,594 3,590

(@)

Particulars of investments of listed equity securities held
by the Group as at 31 March 2013 and 2012 disclosed
pursuant to Chapter 21 of Listing Rules are as follows:

Percentage
of interest
held
FisREADL

Place of Number of
incorporation shares held
ARt FERGEE
2013
—8-=

HK$’000
TR

HK$'000

BT

China Investment ~ Cayman Islands 1,288,000 0.211% 864 454
and Finance HEEE ordinary
Group Limited shares
(“China 1,288,000 %
Investment”) TRR
TERRERE
BRAR
(ThERREEE])

Market value

RIEEMRA BN ERB I AEERZ
T-ZFR-FT--F=A=+-8F
FLEMRAFFREFBOT :
Net assets
attributable
to the Company
AAREEERFE
2013
-g-=

Change in

fair value

AYLESD
2013

—g-=f %

HK$’000

TET

i
2012
—T——F
HK$'000

B

2012
%
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL AR

F-F
HK$'000

e
B70

614 (160) (050 | 1,052 1,148
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE_T—=F=RA=1+—HILFE

20. Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit
or Loss (continued)

(@)

(continued)

China Investment is principally engaged in investment in
listed and unlisted companies in Hong Kong and overseas
market. A brief description of the financial information of
the above listed equity security, based on their latest
financial statements, is as follow:

The unaudited net profit attributable to the owners of
China Investment was approximately HK$3,679,000 for
the six months ended 30 September 2011. No dividend
was received during the year ended 31 March 2012.

The unaudited net loss attributable to the owners of China
Investment was approximately HK$14,764,000 for the
year ended 31 March 2013. No dividend was received
during the year ended 31 March 2013.

The fair value of the investment in China Investment is
based on quoted market price.

(@)

20. BAFEFAERRREZMEEE
(%)

(%)

TERRESETIELERERETER
/IS Z LT RIEET AR - RIELE
Pl EHRAR R 2SR BRE - B
MG ERBR T -

HE-Z——FNAA=Z+HLXEA -
PREEREEEES ARG REEZE
& 53,679,000/ TT c BHEZT——F
SA=TRALFETECKES -

HE-_ZT—=F=-A=t—HBLEFE"
FREREEBERS ABEREEZE
BIFEA B14,764,0008 T - BHE-Z
— = =ZRA=t+—HLFETEDKR



CHINA INVESTMENT DEVELOPMENT LIMITED HER &M Z AR T

ANNUAL REPORT $# 2013

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A1y W5 A B ik

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE-_Z—=F=-A=1+—HLHFE

20. Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit 20. R AFE AEEZEEZHBEE

or Loss (continued) (%)

(b)  Particulars of Investments in convertible bonds held by b)) WBELTRAFEAZHEEZALERZ
the Group as at 31 March 2013 and 2012 disclosed E—=FfRZF—_F=A=1+—80M
pursuant to Chapter 21 of Listing Rules are as follows: FRENAHMRESFFHBFOT -

Name of investee Place of Convertible bonds, Fair value

companies incorporation at cost adjustment Carrying value
EXRENREE SRR ARRES  BRAE AFERAE ARE{E
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
—B-=f —T--F ZB-=F —ZT-—-F —F-=F —FT--F
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT TET THERT TET FTHT TET

Miracle Fortune BVI 7,000 - (27) - 6,973 -
Group Limited HBHTEE
(note )
BRESERRAA
(P=ED
Treasure Billions BVI 7,800 - (232) - 7,568 -
Wisdom Limited ~ HEB#RHES
(note i)
BEEARLAA
(L)
Venture Champion  BVI 6,600 - (1) - 6,599 -
Limited (note i) ~ HEB#REHE
(PR & i)
21,400 - (260) - 21,140 -
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For the year ended 31 March 2013
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20. Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit
or Loss (continued)
(b)  (continued)

U

(i)

On 11 June 2012, the Company invested in the 3%
unsecured convertible bonds issued by Miracle
Fortune Group Limited (“Miracle”) at a face value of
HK$7,000,000, bearing coupon interest rate of 3%
per annum. Miracle is an investment holding
company and its business is principally engaged in
provision of branding, products design, distribution
network development and e-business services
related to apparel and accessories business in the
PRC. The convertible bonds due on 11 June 2016
are convertible into fully paid ordinary shares of
Miracle with a par value of USD1.00 each at a
conversion price of HK$200,000 per share. The
Company can exercise the conversion at anytime
until the maturity date. Up to 20 June 2013, the
convertible bonds in the principal amount of
HK$7,000,000 with accrued interest up to 20 June
2013 amounting to approximately HK$31,000 was
fully redeemed by the issuer.

On 14 June 2012, the Company invested in the 3%
unsecured convertible bonds issued by Treasure
Billions Wisdom Limited. (“Treasure”) at a face value
of HK$7,800,000, bearing coupon interest rate of
3% per annum. Treasure is an investment holding
company and its business is principally engaged in
provision of multi-media and outdoor advertising
business in the PRC. As at the time of investment in
Treasure, the investment in Treasure did not exceed
20% of the Company’s net asset value at that time.
The convertible bonds due on 14 June 2016 are
convertible into fully paid ordinary shares of
Treasure with a par value of USD1.00 each at a
conversion price of HK$200,000 per share. The
Company can exercise the conversion at anytime
until the maturity date. Up to 16 May 2013, the
convertible bonds in the principal amount of
HK$7,800,000 with accrued interest up to 16 May
2013 amounting to approximately HK$111,000 was
fully redeemed by the issuer.

20. RATFEF A EERRECMKEE
(%)
) (&)

w—E— _E/\HWL SRR N/N
REREEEEARAR (R %D
#1723 Eﬁﬁ#T%hFﬁ Z
£ (&5 EE A7,000,000%8 7T %
BENEFFIETB - REAK
BiERAT  EEEEBKRANHRE
RIEEERE KB EL 2 REE
o B DHEBERERKE
THERE R-ZZ—XEXA
+— BRI 2 TR R E S AT IR R AR
{EF 200,000 THIMKRE T
BREEI100ETLZHRBRER
B% o A2 BRI EIER B A {a] B RS
TEBRERE - BE-_T—=F"A
Z+H - AK%&% /7,000,000 T
mEsdzE—F—=F"A=-+A2Z
B 431,000 T 2 TR EFH
BREITAZEER o

ot

iy RZZ——FA+HEAE - KAF
REREEEERAF(EEE)

% ?ZST“\\#&WTT‘%JM 7w

5

JC
*ﬂ%lESrﬁ§°%E%m
&é%““? HEZEBRNF
B ZEERPINES R - 1F
HETEHITRER REEE
BELARRRE R 2 EEFETHR
B20% - R=ZZE—RFRNA+IUA
BBz AT R E A AR IR R E TR
200,000 TN E ZEEFRA
E1.00ET 2 BB EBAR - K
N B AR EER A AT S T
B - BHE=2E_T—=FRA+X
H - A% % 47,800,000 7% 7T ifl 2
AE-Z-—=ZFHA+NAZFE
#9111,0008 7T 2 AT iR B 5 B 3
x??}\i;&(/ﬁ&
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20. Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit 20. R AFEH ACEBREB 2 HBEE
or Loss (continued) (%)

(o)  (continued) ) (&)

(i)  On 29 June 2012, the Company invested in the 3%
unsecured convertible bonds issued by Venture
Champion Limited (“Venture”) at a face value of
HK$6,600,000, bearing coupon interest rate of 3%
per annum. Venture is an investment holding
company and its business is principally engaged in
professional stage performance and provision of
training in art and cultural activities in the PRC. The
convertible bonds due on 29 June 2016 are
convertible into fully paid ordinary shares of Venture
with a par value of USD1.00 each at a conversion
price of HK$200,000 per share. The Company can
exercise the conversion at anytime until the maturity
date.

Investments in convertible bonds represent investments in
convertible bonds issued by Miracle, Treasure and
Venture. The investments in the convertible bonds have
debt components and embedded derivatives
components. The directors of the Company designated
the combined contracts as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss and recognised at fair value. The fair
value of the combined contracts as at 31 March 2013 is
determined by reference to the valuation carried out by an
external independent valuer by using Discounted Cash
Flow Method and Binominal Option Pricing Model. The
inputs are as follows:

Share price BB
Number of share outstanding K& R
Discount rate PR &
Dividend yield % B F &
Risk free rate 4 [ i 1) 2
Volatility g

iy RZT—ZFX"A=Z+ThA-
7 R & # & 7 Venture Champion
Limited ([Venture]) 21T 2 3JE &
ERRRES  ZEEFEER
6,600,000 7T * IRE RN EFF
3EF A o Venture B AR A
B HFEEBRNPRIRHEEE
S FREEEN R SUEEB S EZ
Bl e RZE—RFXAZ+NAH
B HI 2 AR E S Al IR AR E B AR
200,000 JT 3 #2 X Venture & %
E{E 1.00 %70 2 8B AT @A
ARRE R HARIEA B BT B T {6
AR

RERITRREFIEREREE
= R Venture 1T 2 Al AR ES - WER
AMRESFBEEFITD R#RARITE
TARD - ARREFETEEHENAR
BAFEFAGCESZREZHBEE
WIZATERR GHEONR =T —=
FZAZFT—HZAFEDRE—RIN
HE s hEMKBREREREER S
BASEEEEXETZEENEE -

0=
=

RS AZBENOT
Miracle Treasure Venture
RE EE Venture

HK$185,000/87C HK$178,000/87C HK$176,000/8 7T

100 100 100
14.82% 14.82% 14.82%
0% 0% 0%
0.26% 0.26% 0.26%
47.23% 45.46% 71.31%
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21. Other Receivables, Deposits and 21. HtEWFIE - RERBNRIE
Prepayments

Group Company
KE AN
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E—= —E—= —E——4F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000

HK$’000
FET THTT FET TR

22,

Interest receivable TEU R B, 151 363 151 363
Prepayments B ROR 327 285 314 285

Other receivables and H i fE U FRIA K
deposits paid EfEE 3,106 2,669 3,078 2,669
3,584 3,317 3,543 3,317

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amount of other receivables, deposits and prepayments
approximately their fair value.

Bank and Cash Balances

Bank balances

RITHETF

RRAPEERR/EMEYFIE - e MIEMNK
B REEREAHERE

22. RITRBEEERE

Group Company
REE NS
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E—= —E—= —E——4F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000

HK$’000
FET THTT FHEx THET

6,630 5,954 6,499 5,779

The effective interest rate of the deposits range from 0.001% to
0.02% (2012: 0.05% to 0.1%) per annum and all of them have
a maturity within three months from initial inception.

FERZ BEEFENTFFE0.001% E0.02%
TE——F 1 005%F0.1%) * MATBETFERE
BB RFEREA =18 A AEE -
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23. Assets and Liabilities of a Disposal Group 23. PERBFELHEZHEHIIZEER

Classified as Held for Sale 8fE

On 21 February 2012, the Company entered into a conditional RZE——F-A=+—H ARFRE—FE
sale and purchase agreement with an independent third party NE=ZFIINERHEE R UHERAF
for the disposal of the Company’s entire 100% interests in Asia 7 Asia Light 2 E [ B A &) 256 100% s - B
Light and its subsidiary, being the Group’s investment business REFEZBEREEEB(TREHER])  BeR
in Korea (“Disposal Group”) for a cash consideration of HK$1 {8 /51,000,000%8 ¢ - HEARIBZ25 R
million. The Disposal Group has been presented as assets RBEELRECEE - HEERZE—ZFNA
classified as held for sale. The disposal had been completed on ZHHEK RIREHR - HEHERZEER
20 April 2012. The assets and liabilities of the Disposal Group at BEOT -

the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Group

RE
2013 2012
—ET—= —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET F& T
Property, plant and equipment WE - B K& = 187
Available-for-sale financial assets (note a) Al HEMBEE (Mizta) - 3,429
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments  E fth fE U 5118 ~ 124 R IBfT 208 - 754
Bank and cash balances He MIRTTETT = 7
Assets classified as held for sale DIEAFEREZEE = 4,377
Other payables and accrued charges HA I RIE R ERTE A = (2,008)
Liabilities classified as held for sale DERFBEREZAE = (2,008)
Net assets of Disposal Group HEHRR 2 EEFE - 2,369

101
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23. Assets and Liabilities of a Disposal Group 23. "EABEHEZHEARNZEER
Classified as Held for Sale (continued) =V E
Note: FiEE

(@

Particulars of investments held by the Group as at 31 March
2013 and 2012 disclosed pursuant to Chapter 21 of Listing
Rules are as follows:

Name of
Place of
incorporation

investee Unlisted equity
companies

FETREES -
BRAE

BEZRENAEH

R AR AL 3t B

2013 2012
—EF—= —E—_4F

—=

HK$’000

ILC Co. Ltd (“ILC")
of Korea

RERE

ILC is principally engaged in producing, distributing and
managing self-service coin counting machines, information
technology and e-commerce business. The carrying amount of
investment in ILC as at 31 March 2012 is KRW500,000,000,
which is equivalent to approximately HK$3,429,000. No dividend
was received or receivable during the year. At 31 March 2012,
the directors of the Company had assessed that no impairment
loss was required to be made for the investment in ILC. In April
2012, the Company had disposed of the subsidiary, Asia Light
and its subsidiary, Temuijin Investments Korea Co., Limited which
held the equity interest in ILC. Therefore, at the end of reporting
period, the investment in ILC was reclassified as disposal group
held for sale.

securities, at cost Fair value adjustment

HK$’000
FHT  TET

HK$°000
T THET FTHET THET

The Republic - 3,429

RIELETRAUFANERBEZAEEAR T
—=ER-T——F=-A=+—HAFHEEF
BT -

Carrying value

D ERE SREE
2013 2012 2013 2012

—T——F —ZT-—= —E—_4F

HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000

- - = 3,429

LCEBRFAE DEREEBEEHK
BB RETFEBER RZT—Z_F=A
= + — B RILCz #%# B &
T 18 /% 500,000,000 #2 &l (#8 % 7 49 3,429,000
BIL) e AFENWEE WREHRE - R =
T——F=-A=+—H AAREFCTHH
BRRILC Z I EELEMIRERE - R=F
——FMWA AQFHE—KKE R FAsia
Light & £ Fff /& 2 7] Temujin Investments Korea
Co., Limited * ZE A RIHEH ILC Z A -
Hit - RIFEHR - RILCZREBEH S
RIFEREZHEES -
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24. Other Borrowing 24, HifE&

Group and Company

AEERAKAE
2013 2012
—_E=—= —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
THT T
Other borrowing HEMEE 2,899 -
The lender is a related party, whose spouse is shareholder of WHAARBBEAT - HEBAAARRKRE - &
the Company. The other borrowing is unsecured, repayable on MIEEAEET - IR EREE KIZPBIRTT
demand, and bearing interest at Hong Kong Dollar Prime Rate (BE) 2 B TREEFNENE -

of Bank of China (Hong Kong) per annum.

25. Amounts due from/(to) Shareholder/ 25 EW (EAH)RR "HEBAF
Subsidiaries/Directors BEENE

Group and Company

AEERAAT
2013 2012
—E—=fF —F——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T 7T
Amount due from a shareholder JEN — 2 IR FRIE - 3,884

Company
¥ N/NE]

2013 2012
—E—= —T——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T 7T
Amount due from subsidiaries FENS B A FIFRIE 6,474 36,195
Less: Impairment losses recognised B BRERRERE (6,474) -
- 36,195
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25. Amounts due from/(to) Shareholder/ 25. B (EF)RR "HEBEQARA
Subsidiaries/Directors (continued) BEEREE)
The movement in the impairment losses recognised for amount MEKB AT RECER B EERBES I
due from subsidiaries is as follows: I

Company
b /N

2013 2012

—_E=—= —E——F

HK$’000 HK$'000

Fi# Tt

Balance at 1 April MU A—RZ &% = -

Impairment losses recognised ERERREEE 6,474 -

Balance at 31 March RZA=+—HBz#&% 6,474 -
The amounts due are unsecured, interest free and repayment KREWTENZEAEIET B REREK

on demand. 8 -
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26. Share Capital 26. R
Company
KAF
Number of Number of

Nominal value

ordinary shares ordinary shares

of HK$0.2 each of HK$0.01 each HK$’000
BREE BREE
0.2 Z 0.01 T2 E{E
EERYE ZEBREE
Authorised: JETE
At 1 April 2011 R—ZE——FMmMA—H 500,000,000 - 100,000
Capital reorganisation (note a) A EA (H5Ea) (500,000,000)  10,000,000,000 -
At 31 March 2012 and i
31 March 2013 =A=+—Hk
—E—=F=ZA=+—H - 10,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: EETRAR
At 1 April 2011 RZ—ZE——FMmMA—H 30,250,760 - 6,050
Capital reorganisation AR AN EE 48 (30,250,760) 30,250,760 (5,747)
Issue of shares (note b) BT (M3 o) - 600,000,000 6,000
At 31 March 2012 R-ZE——F=A=+—H - 630,250,760 6,303
Issue of shares (note c) BT (B 7EC) - 14,600,000 146
At 31 March 2013 R-E—=F=A=+—H - 644,850,760 6,449
Notes: M5k
(@  The capital reorganisation of the Company was effective on 6 @ ARERABHACHR-_F-—FOANAE
April 2011 by way of a reduction of share capital which involved W AAEREIBRAE RS REGREE
a subdivision of each share of HK$0.20 each into 20 new shares 0.2078 7T 2 B& 1 ¥ 4 73 20 I & AR I {E.0.01 8
of HK$0.01 each and the cancellation of 19 of every 20 issued TCZ IR R IR i iR i A A R AP &
shares in the share capital of the Company after the subdivision 202 BTN EESE 19 UEA R B BRA
of shares, so effectively the share capital of the Company was FWR EBFTHEDR - BN AR A RS REE0.20
reduced to the extent that HK$0.19 of the paid-up capital of the BTZBAEBRETRMN 2 EHRATTH0.19
Company on each of the existing issued share of HK$0.20 was BT °

cancelled.




CHINA INVESTMENT DEVELOPMENT LIMITED +ER & ZARALT

ANNUAL REPORT %% 2013

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
s 1 YU 0 0 B i

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE-Z—=F=A=+—HLFE

26. Share Capital (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(®)

On 6 April 2011, the Company completed the issue of
600,000,000 new shares of HK$0.01 each to Jade Bright
Limited, at the consideration of HK$60,000,000 under
subscription agreement dated 10 December 2010 (as
supplemented by the supplemental agreement dated 13 January
2011) and entered into between the Company and Jade Bright
Limited. Immediately after the completion of the subscription
agreement, Jade Bright Limited had placed down 129,418,000
new shares to six independent investors.

On 20 March 2013, the Company entered into the placing
agreement with the placing agent pursuant to which the placing
agent agreed to place, on a best effort basis, to one or more
independent placee(s) for up to 14,600,000 new shares of the
Company at a price of HK$0.50 per placing share. On 28 March
2013, the placing was completed. The aggregate nominal value
of the placing shares issued under the placing is HK$146,000.

26. BRA (&)

GEE

(®)

(%)

RZZ——FMANE  RIEHARQ A 220
ARABMITZEHA-Z—ZF+=-A1+H
ZREDE(CABA-T——F—HA+=8
ZHEBE#E)  ARRTERAZHFRA
A]E47 600,000,000 % & i% EI1E 0.01 & 7T 2 ¥7
A% - X {&/60,000,000787C - EFERE
A% - BIABRARBAANBEILIZEER
AL 129,418,000 B FT LD ©

RZZ—=F=A=+H AARHEERE
RIS RS Bt RERRERERTRKRE
ERMOSOBTZEERN  M—HHUE
18 37 A AR A iR & 5 % 14,600,000 % A8 2 7] 1
B -BEER -_E—=F=A-+/\B=x
e RBEEEMBTESRMAEEER
146,000 77T °
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BE_ZT—=F=-A=1+—HIFE

27. %

Company
KRR
Convertible
bonds
equity
reserve
TRRES
Bk

Investment
revaluation Warrant
reserve reserve
REEf e
RiviE i fife
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

AT T THT

Share
premium

Share
option
reserve

BREGR
HK$000

Accumulated
losses

RithR
HK§ 1000

A1 Apr 2011 W-Z-—EmA-A 90,771 675) 842 10,696 - {791 (18540)
Loss for the year, as restated TEEEE(E7) - - - - - (8,750) (8,750)
Other comprehensive income, HEp2EkNE (E5)
as restated
— Change in fair value of available-for-sale — AT HEHHEE
financial assets AEEES - 1,278 - - - - 1,278
— Release of investment revaluation - BETLERK
reserve upon disposal of BEBEREE
an avallable-for-sale financial assets BlhEE 875 - - - - 875
Total comprehensive income FERRANRER
for the year, as restated 27) - 2,153 - - - (8,750) (6,597)
Capital reorganisation ERER (90,771) - - - - 96,518 5,747
Redemption of convertible bonds EETHEES - - - (10,696) - - (10,696)
Issue of shares Efkln 54,000 - - - - - 54,000
Share issue expenses W‘ﬂfxﬁi (52) - - - - - (52)
Reversal of unlisted warrants Fé EEIE - - (842) - - 842 -
Recognition of equity-settied EaERE uﬁ%ﬂﬂ Ik
Share-based payment - - - - 4,730 - 4,730
At 31 March 2012 and 1 April 2012 , WZE--F=R
as restated =+-8k
“Z-"§¥NA-A
(&) 53,948 1,278 - - 4,730 (29,365) 30,591
Loss for the year REEEE - - - = = (15,020) (15,020
Other comprehensive income £t 2l
— Release of investment revaluation - HETLERK
reserve upon dlisposal of BERERRE
an avalable-for-sale financial assets =1 - (1,278) - - - - (1,278)
Total comprehensive income for the year & E 2 E A ER - (1,278) - - - (15,020) (16,298)
lssue of shares Bk 7,154 = = = o = 1,154
Share issue expenses RIDBITRY (73) - - - - - (73)
At 31 March 2013 =“F=R=1+-H 61,029 - - - 4,730 (44,385) 21,374
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27. % (&)

27. Reserves (continued)

The following describes the nature and purpose of each reserve

within owners’ equity:

Reserve

f#tE

Share premium

Bt 5 (B

Investment revaluation reserve

REEEHE

Warrant reserve

Exchange reserve

I

Convertible bonds equity reserve

ABRESFE SR

Share option reserve

BRERHE

U AYHE AN E2ZIEERE 62
s

Description and purpose
Hui R B #

Amount subscribed for share capital in excess of nominal value.

RBRABBHAEEREE

Gains/losses arising on recognising financial assets classified as available
for sale at fair value.

AR A FENEAHENBEEMELN KRS B -

Warrant reserve represents the net proceeds received from the issue of
warrants of the Company.
RIBEBRERETRR R RREB S HIEFE

Gains/losses arising on retranslating the net assets of foreign operations
into presentation currency.

B2 EWEMRE BN EBHFEEMEEN K BE -

Amount of proceeds on issue of convertible bonds relating to the equity
component (i.e. option to convert the debt into share capital).

BRERSY (AEBERBRAN ZEER) T BRRESAERIES
B o

Cumulative expenses recognised on the granting of share options to the
employees over the vesting period.

sLERBAEREE R L BRERRN RETHX
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28. Share Option Scheme

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”), was
adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on 9 April 2009 for the
primary purpose of providing incentive to directors and eligible
employees. Under the Scheme, the Board of Directors of the
Company may grant options to eligible employees, including
directors of the Company and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for
shares of the Company. Consideration of HK$1.00 is payable
by each grantee upon acceptance of an option.

At 31 March 2013, the number of shares in respect of which
options had been granted and remained outstanding under the
Scheme was 41,800,000 (2012: 41,800,000), representing
6.48% (2012: 6.63%) of the shares of the Company in issue at
that date. The total number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the Scheme is not permitted to
exceed 10% of the shares of the company in issue at any point
in time, without prior approval from the Company’s
shareholders. Options granted to independent non-executive
directors in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s share capital and
with a value in excess of HK$5 million must be approved in
advance by the Company’s shareholders.

Aok BB A i

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE-_ZT—=F=A=1+—HILFE

28. B EFE

ARRRBER-_ZFZNFHUANABBZRE
EEMBRERT B ([F181)) - TEEMRER
EENAERESR - REFE ARRERE
AmaEREE(BEARRLRENBARE
) RETRBARR RN 2 B - BAK
ANEMEIRER A NHRE1.008TT -

R-ZE—Z=ZF=ZA=+—8 " BREHEEEH
BMATEZERBEMSPERNHDEE A
41,800,000 f% (== — —4F : 41,800,000 f% )
HERARANEBEETRMN6.48%(ZF
—Z%F :6.63%) c REARTIRESHAAE
IRIRFT 81 AT % B R P8 R AR 1) B BT 15 1R
BAR B AEMRE S TR 2 10% © 2AM)
BYIEITE SRR 2 BREBBA R RRA
0.1% K& {B{& 8 1 5,000,0008 7T » BIZEREARRD
BIRR SR B S o
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28. BRETE (&)
TERBRBE-—E——F-A=+—AI*F
FEARIEET B A D R AR >

28. Share Option Scheme (continued)

The following table discloses movements of the Company’s

share options granted under the Scheme during the year ended

31 March 2013:

Number of share options
BREYA
Exercise At Granted  Exercised At
Exercise price 1 April during during 31 March
Category Date of grant period per share 2012 the year the year 2013
R=B-=% R=%-=%
5l BEAS i BRITEE mA-H FREH ERfTHE ZA=1-8
Executive director 30 March 2012 30 March 2012 to HK$0.2552 6,300,000 - - 6,300,000
BITES Z2-Zf=A="H 30 March 2017 0.2552/8 T
“E-—#ZA=1H%
“T-+E=f=1H
Non-executive director 30 March 2012 30 March 2012 to HK$0.2552 6,300,000 - - 6,300,000
FiTES —F-F=A=1H 30 March 2017 0.2552 87T
“ET--#-A=1H%
I e =
Independent non-executive 30 March 2012 30 March 2012 to HK$0.2552 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000
directors ZF-ZF=A=+H 30 March 2017 02552/ C
BUENTES “Z--f=-R=1H%
I e =
Employee 30 March 2012 30 March 2012 to HK$0.2552 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000
EE ZE-Zf=A="1H 30 March 2017 0255275 TC
“E-——#=Zf=1H%
“ZT-+E=ZA=1H
Consultants 30 March 2012 30 March 2012 to HK$0.2552 26,200,000 - - 26,200,000
B “T-CZ#=A=tH 30 March 2017 0.2552 87T
“T-—#-A=1H%
I e =
Total e 41,800,000 - - 41,800,000
At 31 March At 31 March
2013
R-%B-=%
SHE S
Number of exercisable share option ATE 2 BRES e 41,800,000 41,800,000
Weighted average exerciser price MEETEE HK$0.2552 HK$0.2552
0.25528 T 0.2552 /870

ZERITE BRI R FE4 A
F(ZE—ZF HF) -

The weighted average remaining life of these outstanding share
option is approximately 4 years (2012: 5 years).
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28. Share Option Scheme (continued)

The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments to
certain directors and grantees as compensation. Equity-settled
share-based payments are measured at fair value (excluding
the effect of non market-based vesting conditions) at the date
of grant. No vesting condition was imposed and the share
options were exercisable immediate on grant date. The fair
value of the equity-settled share-based payments determined
at the date of grant and expensed when the share options
accepted by grantee. No equity-settled share based payment
had been expensed in profit or loss and credited in the share
option reserve during the year (2012: HK$4,730,000).

The fair value of the total options granted in the year measured
as at the date of grant on 30 March 2012 was HK$4,730,000.
The following significant assumptions were used to derive the
fair value using the Black-Scholes option pricing model:

1. an expected volatility range of 88.77 per cent;
2. expected annual dividend yield range equal to zero;

3.  the estimated expected life of the options granted during
the year is 2.5 years; and

4. the quoted risk free rate with expected life of 2.5 years
were 0.3055 per cent, which are adopted to calculate the
fair value of options granted on 30 March 2012.

The Black-Scholes option pricing model requires the input of
highly subjective assumptions, including the volatility of share
price. As changes in subjective input assumptions can materially
affect the fair value estimated, in the Directors’ opinion, the
existing model does not necessarily provide a reliable single
measure of the fair value of the share options.

Aok BB A i

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE-_ZT—=F=A=1+—HILFE

28. BRETE (&)

REFME TEERARAELEREZ AR
DRFRIEAHE - REAEURGHRRED
BHIZAFEFNECTRIENETSAER 2
BRI FE) o BEN INEA 5B K
AR E T A B HABN RS 7716 - M B E A
DRz A FERE L BEETE - WHRFER
AEMERERSZE - TR BERSEEIN
RPN B R S R AR R RS (=
T — 4 1 4,730,000 7C) °

REHAEH_ZT——F=A=+H FARAER
B R i A B2 A T 1B /4,730,000 7T © LA
TAFERANR — FRiTHEcEEAFE
RNFEMAERBE

TEHR iR %8 E & 88.77% ¢

—_

2. BEHEREFXHEMAINT:

3. FAERLBEREEAFH/25F Rk

4, BRNFEHEFEE A2.5F PR E R R X
0.3055% T ER T ——F=A=+H
P R i 2 A FE -

BAR — FRANTHEEERAZRBARE
IERR  BREROEBRKE - dARZBREA
BRAEEAEEH A FEMLHENEATE
BEERA/RBRARBARHEATESE —FE
BEERFEZTA -
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29.

30.

112

Net Asset Value Per Share

Net asset value per share is calculated by dividing the net
assets included in the consolidated statement of financial
position of approximately HK$34,091,000 (2012:
HK$42,097,000) and the number of ordinary shares in issue as
at 31 March 2013, being 644,850,760 (2012: 630,250,760).

Related Party Transactions

(@ Compensation of key management personnel, including
the directors and other members of key management,
during the year is as follows:

29.

30.

BREEFE
BREEFERSTAGREMBRARZEET
{E4734,091,00058 7T (—F— — 4 : 42,097,000
BILBRUR-_Z—=F=A=+—RHzB%
17 38 B A% $10644,850,760 % ( =& — — 4
630,250,760 %) 5T & »

BEALIRS
@ IESERAB(REEEREMIEER
AB)EXNBEHIINT -

2013 2012
—_ZT—= —E——4F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTE A

FET THETT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥ & - ZBE R BEWHIZ

(note 15) (Mf3E15)

2,171 3,856

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in
note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

EEME 2 E— SFBHENGEETER
REIFE15 -
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30. Related Party Transactions (continued) 30. BEALXRZ (&)

(o) During the year, the Group entered into the following ) FA  AEBEGEBEATTZUNTR
transactions with related parties: 2 -
Name of related party Nature of transaction 2013 2012
BEALTEE REME =—2-= —ET 5
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHR TR
United Gain Investment Limited Investment manager fee 41 569
(“United Gain”) (note i)
BEER BB A A ([EeEL) (KT RAEKEER
China Everbright Securities (HK) Limited  Investment manager fee 660 -
(“China Everbright”) (note ii)
hENARES (BB)BRLAA REKEER
(TR B3R ) (PR &E D
China Everbright Placing commission fee 73 -
AR tEREER
Jade Bright Limited/Deng Li (note iii) Share of office lease expenses 1,600 3,884
RPAR R, B S (BT DEZRAEREHAX
Mr. Chen Yin (note 24) Other borrowing 2,899 -
PR JEL S5 A (M95E24) HigE
Interest expense on borrowing 26 -
BENERX
Notes: gL

(i)

(i)

In March 2009, the Company and United Gain entered
into an investment management agreement for appointing
United Gain as investment manager of the Group. The
annual investment manager’s fee is equivalent to the
higher of HK$100,000 or 1.25% of the Group’s net asset
value, provided that such annual fee shall not exceed
HK$600,000. On 30 April 2012, the Company and United
Gain agreed to terminate the investment management
agreement with effect from 1 May 2012.

On 30 April 2012, the Company entered into an
investment management agreement with China Everbright,
the new investment manager of the Company, for a period
of three years effective from 1 May 2012. The annual
investment manager’s fee payable to China Everbright is
HK$720,000.

Jade Bright Limited, a shareholder of the Company, and
Mr. Deng Li, a director of Jade Bright Limited had
undertaken to share of the office rental and building
management expenses.

(i)

(iii)

RZEBNFE=ZR > ARBEBER
REERBR  ARTBERSARER
BB - BERELEEERBESEN
100,00078 7T 2% AN & B & E & E 2
1.26% (AB=ERE) ERHEFEE
TS H838 600,000 7T c RZZE—=
FOA=+H » QR EE LT E 421
HEERRE BT ——_FHA—H
ARAR -

RZF-——FMA=+H AARHEE
MEEREPBEN AR LREER T
HOBE-—FRAA-HERER AR
H=%F - SFRNPEAARZRAEKRE
B /720,000 87T

RRRFRRBAARATRRAFTRL
RIEEMNAEEEREIERLEHS
REFEBRX -
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31. Disposal of a Subsidiary 31. HE—XHEBAH

(@) For the year ended 31 March 2013 (@ BZEZZ—=%=ZA=+—HLHF
E
On 21 February 2012, the Company entered into the RZE—ZFZA=+—H8 AR

agreement with an independent third party for the
disposal of 100% equity interest in Asia Light and the
assignment of the amount due from the Disposal Group

*%@M%:Eﬂi%ﬁ’uﬁiﬁﬁ
1,000,000 7% 7T tH & Asia Light 2 & &8 %
Rz RERELE %liiﬂﬁ Al
to the Company at a cash consideration of HK$1 million. He HEFBHERZ-ZE—ZFHA=+
The disposal has been completed on 20 April 2012. A H5ERK ° Hjﬁilﬁ’”timﬁz %5 #73,681,000
gain of approximately HK$3,681,000 resulted in the BIT

disposal.

Group
KEH

HK$'000
TR

Property, plant and equipment WE - BB R 187
Available-for-sale financial assets AHENBEE 3,429
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments Huib el IE ~ 124 RFENRIE 753
Bank and cash balances RIT &EEA%’@ 7
Amount due to holding company JER —FRIER A RIFRIE (4,313)
Other payables and accrued charges H A TR &FE‘ a* ER (2,008)
Net liabilities BEFE (1,945)
Realisation of exchange reserve TIRE W R (5,049)
Net liabilities disposed of FrinEaE @%ﬁ (6,994)
Assignment of amount due to the Company R B AN R AR 4,313
Gain on disposal & e 3,681

Total consideration BRE 1,000
Net cash flow on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RXWBARZIRERE F5E

Consideration settled in cash THERE 1,000

Bank and cash balances of the subsidiary disposed of FTHEMBRARIZIRITRIRS&ETF (7)
Net cash flow in respect of the disposal HEZREREFHE 993
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31. Disposal of a Subsidiary (continued) 31. HE—XHBLAT (&)
(b) For the year ended 31 March 2012 b) BE-—E——F=A=+—HLHF
E
On 23 August 2011, the Company disposed of a wholly- RZZE——FN\A=Z+=H A2FH
owned subsidiary, Temuijin Investment Strategic Il Limited. € & & Kt B A &l Temujin Investment
An analysis of assets and liabilities over a disposed Strategic Il Limited © F7 tH & M B A & 2
subsidiary is as follow: BERBGESTWET :

Group
REm

HK$’000
T

Available-for-sale financial assets AIHENBEE 2,104
Amount due to holding company JE —RIEAR A B FRIE (2,104)
Net asset disposal of FritEEEFE -
Written off of an amount due from a subsidiary T 5H FE U — KB B A R FRIE 2,104
Gain on disposal & e 1

Total consideration BRE 2,105
Net cash flow on disposal of a subsidiary HE—XWBARZIRERE FHE

Consideration settled in cash REFENRE 2,105

Bank and cash balances of the subsidiary disposed of ~ FrHEMB AT ZRIT MBS ET -

Net cash flow in respect of the disposal PEZRERE T 2,105
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32. Retirement Benefit Scheme 32.

The Group has participated in a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all eligible
employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group, in funds under the
control of trustee. Under the scheme, each of the Group (the
employer) and its employees makes monthly contributions to
the MPF Scheme at 5% of the employees’ earnings as defined
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance. The
contributions from each of the employer and employees are
subject to a maximum contribution of HK$1,250 per month and
thereafter contributions are voluntary. No forfeited contribution
is available to reduce the contributions payable in the future
years.

The total contributions charged to the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income amounted to approximately
HK$28,000 (2012: approximately HK$22,000), representing
contributions payable to the MPF Scheme by the Group in
respect of the year ended 31 March 2013.

33. Operating Lease Commitments 33.

116

At the end of reporting period, the minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases for leased premise are

payable as follow:

RIKERETE
AEBZRANERTBSHIGIAMEARE
REERERESHTRHRABFEAERGE
([wiE2stdl]))  ZAEzEERAREZE
EDR  BERAENZESHA - RIEZE
2 AEE(RT)REEBSERREE 25
BEERBBIMERBERETEIED) 25%F A
ARt BER MR - BREREES B ZH
AESATH1,260/87T - MR HHBEM -
I LU FRAIR D SR A 2 K o

T ASRE IR 2 R AEEEA128,0008 T (=
T 1 #J22,0008 ) EASKERER
—E—=FZA=t+—HULFERRESTE
FERE 2 K o

RERERRE
RIS IR - AEEIRER AT M S ST
REMEEN 2 HEBLFORNT :

Group Company
KEH AN
2013 2012 2013 2012
—ET—= —_E—= —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
TET BT FHET T
Within one year —F R 9,036 2,664 8,880 2,664
In the second to fifth year F_FEFERAFA
inclusive (PREEEME) = 2,664 = 2,664
9,036 5,328 8,880 5,328
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34. Summary of Financial Assets and Financial 34. RERE P2 BKEERMBEEES
Liabilities by Category =

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values TRINIHFSNMEEZAEBHFEE K
of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities as defined in note AEMNEREERATE :
5(f):

Group
rEE

2013
—e—=

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair

amount value amount value
REE A¥E BREE NS
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET F#& T T T

Financial assets BBEE
Available-for-sale financial assets AHENREE - - 15,296 15,296
Fair value through profit or loss: BN ERFATE
BRI
— Designated upon initial recognition — #12F RS 15 FE 21,140 21,140 2,976 2,976
— Held for trading — BEEE 454 454 614 614
Loans and receivables B REWRIE 9,887 9,887 12,870 12,870
31,481 31,481 31,756 31,756

Financial liabilities g S=R
Financial liabilities measured REHEN AT EZ

at amortised cost MEaR (4,519) (4,519) (1,224) (1,224)

Company
AR
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——fF
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair

amount value amount value
BREE A¥E BRI (B ~NEE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THET F&T TFET T

Financial assets BBEE
Available-for-sale financial assets A EMBEE - - 15,296 15,296
Fair value through profit or loss: BAFERTAE
B
— Designated upon initial recognition — #)2FFEREFIEE 21,140 21,140 2,976 2,976
— Held for trading — BEEE 454 454 614 614
Loans and receivables ERKEWTE 9,728 9,728 48,890 48,890
31,322 31,322 67,776 67,776

Financial liabilities b =R
Financial liabilities measured R AT E 2

at amortised cost V%aE (4,510) (4,510) (34,006) (34,006)
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34. Summary of Financial Assets and Financial 34. RERE P2 BKEERMBEEES

Liabilities by Category (continued) =E(E)

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments TRINTRATFEERE D AR FEEZ

carried at fair value by level of fair value hierarchy: BITEDH -

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

F—: MHRAEEXAEERTSME CRERAE)

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and

B BE(BIER)KEE (AIREER)NEENBEZABRBARIE - MEE—HAE

EEWRE - &

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).
EE WIERAIBEMISHEBENEEN BB RABE (TABR 2 BARE) -

Group and Company
REERARDT
2013

—E—=

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—R gt 1 F=R &t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET THET THET THET

Financial assets held BEEEZ

for trading MEEE

— Listed equity securities — FRERES 454 - = 454
Financial assets at BRATFEFAEERRE

fair value through BEZHBEE

profit or loss

— Investment in convertible — RENRRES

bonds - - 21,140 21,140

454 - 21,140 21,594
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34. Summary of Financial Assets and Financial 34. RERE P2 BKEERMBEEES
Liabilities by Category (continued) =E(E)

Group and Company
REE KA F]
2012
—E——F

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—& B E=& A&t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FABT FABT FAT FAT

Financial assets held BIEEECMKEE
for trading
— Listed equity securities — EHREES 614 - - 614
Financial assets at RAFEAEER
fair value through BRECHBEE
profit or loss
— Investments in convertible  — && f[ &%
bonds — conversion — gy
portion - - 2,976 2,976

Available-for-sale financial ATHEZHMEEE

assets
— Investments in convertible  — &K (ES
bonds — debt portion — &% - - 15,296 15,296

614 - 18,272 18,886
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34. RERED M BEERMEEEM
2(#&)
REEATTEREARE (=R UATE
SIE B IS AR 2 $IR :

34. Summary of Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities by Category (continued)
Reconciliation for financial instruments carried at fair value
based on significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) are as

follows:

Financial
assets at fair
value through
profit or loss:
Investment

in convertible
bonds

BAFERA
E
BE
4% R&E
R BB
HK$’000
FHT

Available for
sale financial
assets:
Investment

in convertible
bonds

AHEZ
PBEE
RER
AR ES
HK$’000
TAET

At 1 April 2012 RZE——FWMA—H 2,976 15,296 18,272
Redemption & o] (4,482) (14,018) (18,500)
Purchases BB 21,400 = 21,400
Total gain/(loss): i zs (E518) -

— in profit or loss (note a) — Piazx (st a) 1,246 - 1,246
— in other comprehensive — REMmEEKE
income (note b) (Fi7EDb) - (1,278) (1,278)

At 31 March 2013 R-ZE—=F=HA=+—H 21,140 - 21,140

Gain/(loss) recognised in BAAEERTS
profit or loss relating to H B4 RIS P B 75
financial instruments held by TARBREPERN
the Group at the end of zs(E518)
reporting date 1,246 - 1,246

At 1 April 2011 R-ZE——FPMA—H - - -
Purchases i 4,482 14,018 18,500
Total gain/(loss): Bl (BE)

— in profit or loss (note a) — gz (Bt a) (1,500) - (1,506)
— in other comprehensive — REMmEEKE
income (note b) (Mi7EDb) - 1,278 1,278

At 31 March 2012 RZE——F=A=+—H 2,976 15,296 18,272

Loss recognised in profit or loss RN EE R RS
relating to financial instruments ~ F HA4% 5 A pr 3 81 7%
held by the Group at the end of T E Rz ERH
reporting date &8 (1,5006) - (1,506)
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34.

35.

Summary of Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities by Category (continued)

Notes:

(@) Included in the change in fair value of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss.

(b) Included in the other comprehensive income related to
investment revaluation.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include equity
investments, debt investments, other receivables, bank and
cash balances, other payables, borrowing and amount due to
directors. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in
the respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies applied by the Group to mitigate
these risks are set out below. Management monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented in
a timely and effective manner.

Interest rate risk

Except for the cash and cash equivalents which carry floating
interest rate, the Group has no other significant interest-bearing
assets with floating rates. The Group’s income and operating
cash flows are substantially independent of changes in market
interest rates.

Sensitivity analysis

Assuming the balance at 31 March 2013 was the amount for
the whole year, if the interest rate was 50 basis points higher or
lower and all other variables were held constant, the Group’s
loss for the year ended 31 March 2013 would decrease or
increase by approximately HK$33,000 (2012: decrease or
increase by approximately HK$30,000).

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates internationally and is exposed to foreign
exchange risk arising from various currency exposures, primarily
with respect to the Renminbi (“RMB”). Foreign exchange risk
arises from future commercial transactions, recognised assets
and liabilities and net investments in foreign operations.

34.

35.

Aok BB A i

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE-_ZT—=F=A=1+—HILFE

BERNE D M BEERVBEESR
E (&)
Fifs

@  HARATESAERRSEE HEEAEAT
H2 2 -

b FAERREEGHzEMEEKE -

MHEREEREREE

AEBFEMBIABERARE EBH%
B HMEWR  RITRRSET - BE
NRE - BERENESEHIE REMBITA
ZHBREAZMERE - AEZSFUHETA
Z B B AN SR T PR DAY AR % 5 L 2 BRER B
W o B B ER AR 4 F B I DA RE IR BT ) B K
BitAEER -

M =E R
BIRERREFEVAFHFEFBI » K&
B E A BRI RET B2 EAMBEE °
AEBBAMELRERERNR D HBEILNT
LR EEH o

BRE D
BREN-—E—=F-A=-+—AZEHB2F
[E 2558 - imE T _EF ok R pE 50 (A4S, -
MATEHMEHTE  AAEEBEE-_T—=
F=ZA=+T—BIEFEZEBEEERDSHIEMNL
33,000 (=& — ZF: B HIE ML
30,00077T) °

HMNE [P

REBEFBERVE  #ZREZEAEEZINE
Rk HhEZEBREEARE(TARE]D -
SMNERRIKBBINEBZ RKEER S - B
REERBBNRIREFHE -
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35. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 35. iIKREKBEEZEEERBEK(Z)

Policies (continued)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table shows the sensitivity analysis of a 5%
increase/decrease in RMB against the Hong Kong dollars, the
effect in the loss for the year is as follows:

Increase/decrease in loss for the year

AFEEEE M, HD

SNERLER (42)

HBEDI
TRIVRARBHBIT L/ T 6% HARF
EEBBRZYEZHRENN ;

Group
AEE
Impact of RMB
AR z2&E

2013 2012
—E—=F —E——4F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FET

305 304

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from
investments in convertible bonds and investment in Hong Kong
listed equity securities, which were classified as either available-
for-sale financial assets (note 19) or financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (note 20) on the consolidated statement of
financial position. To manage its price risk arising from
investments in financial assets, the Group diversified its
portfolio.

Sensitivity analysis

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every 5%
(2012: 5%) change in the fair value of the financial assets with
all other variables held constant and based on their carrying
value amounts at the end of the reporting period. For the
available-for-sale investment, the impact is deemed to be on
the investment revaluation reserve and no account is given for
factors such as impairment, which might have impact on the
income statement.

BRAEE R
AEBEAZBHEEBRRARKRARGEEMH
FRERF D BRI L EMEEE (HEE19) %
RNHERTAEEREE 2 WHEEE (H20) 8
AHREESFREMREE LTRAESFKRE -
REERBEMHEEMSIRZERRAR  ~%
EOBEKEMAS -

BE T

TRIEAEMBEMBEESTE ZBERT -

REVBEERNBERRZETESE  2F

BEEHE% (ZT——F : 6%)EHRE - 37

HEMBEEMS  AHEBHRERSEHKRE

BMFEHERTE MLEEEHEBINEES
AR ERaR AR -
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35. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 35. iIKREKBEEZEEERBEK(Z)
Policies (continued)
Equity price risk (continued) IRAER R (4F)

Group
rEE
Impact of investment in
Impact of investments Hong Kong listed

in convertible bonds equity securities
ERLTRARSRE
AERESREZTE a2
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E—= = —E—= —E——4F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
THET FETT FET T

Increase/decrease in loss REEZ BB, B>

for the year 1,057 149 23 31
Increase/decrease in other  E {2 EE#IE HN, R 2>
equity reserve - 765 = _
Credit risk EERkE
The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk. AEETWEERETREERR -
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35. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 35. WKEKEEBEERBER (&)
Policies (continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group and the

nBEEREE

HRERRBECEARME  ARERAQRE
RV #HEEERARK R RASEED
KE - URAEERAAREERBEES I
BERERERBIFE - T —FRH
BN  AEEZABDESETEIRARBHE
BHEERHBRSREURB BT MERETR
MEEES 2N UREBE B EMNEE
TEAHE ©

Company monitor and maintain a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to finance
the Group’s and the Company’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuation in cash flows. With regard to 2012 and
thereafter, the liquidity of the Group and the Company are
primarily dependent on their ability to maintain adequate cash
flow from operations and to raise funds through issue and
allotment of new shares to meet their debt obligations as they
fall due.

REERARARRMERRZ P BEEDEHA
liabilities at the end of reporting period are as follows: RN

The maturity profile of the Group’s and the Company’s financial

Weighted
average Total

effective Less than 1 year to undiscounted Carrying

cash flows amount
FHRRE
mEHAE
HK$'000

FHT

interest rate
¥
BERA=

1 year 5 years

~£R
% HK$'000
T

—FEHF
HK$'000
TET

BEE
HK$'000
T4

At 31 March 2013

RZZ-=F=A=t-H

Other payables and accrued Hin A FIER
charges JEETER N/ATER 1,471 = 1,471 1,471
Other borrowing g 5.00% 2,899 - 2,899 2,899
Amount due to directors ERESHE N/ATER 149 . 149 149
4,519 - 4,519 4,519
At 31 March 2012 RZZE-Z4=A=1+-H
Other payables and accrued HiERNFER
charges JEst &R N/AZNE A 1,224 - 1,224 1,224
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35. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 35. WKEKEEBEERBER (&)
Policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) RBESRAR (&

Company
PiUNE]

Weighted
average Total
effective Less than 1 year to undiscounted Carrying

interest rate 1 year 5years cash flows amount
LY FURRE

1 YilkS —-fR —-FEIF B REE

% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Tt T AR T

At 31 March 2013 RZE-=#=A=1+-A
Other payables and accrued EEATIER
charges gt N/ATE A 1,462 - 1,462 1,462
Other borrowing HifgE 5.00% 2,899 - 2,899 2,899
Amount due to directors [ENESHE N/AT3E A 149 - 149 149
4,510 - 4,510 4,510
At 31 March 2012 WZE—Z§=A=+—H
Other payables and accrued Hin A HIER
charges [EEtER N/AE A 1,224 - 1,224 1,224
Amount due to a subsidiary EN—RMBLANE N/ATNE 32,782 - 32,782 32,782
34,006 - 34,006 34,006
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36. Capital Management Policy

The Group’s objectives of managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to
provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends
paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors
capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated
as debts divided by total assets. Debts included other payables
and accrued charges, other borrowing and amounts due to
directors and total assets included non-current assets and
current assets as shown in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

The gearing ratio at the end of reporting period was as follows:

Debts B
Total assets BERE
Gearing ratio BEAGBHEE

36. EEBHE
AEBMTESEEBENRELEBLSEL
o PRI R B % A M A
RFNZE - 5B 4 45 B 1 AN 8 1 LU I B A A
Ko BBIERBREREE  AEEHAER
RERNT 2R E  AREEBER « BITHR
B e EELURIRET o

AEBMERMEREME B WEERBLE
REEERER o I EDAMEBEREREE
BESE - MGEEPBHRRERMTR  BEHERE
HEib N RIBREFER HEERENE
ENE BERAEBRRIRDEENRBDE
B °

E3 ]
2013 2012
—E—= —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET THETT
4,519 3,232
38,610 45,329
12% 7%
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37. Events after Reporting Period

(@)

On 13 May 2013, the Company entered into an
agreement with Mr. Zeng Zhiyuan, who is an independent
third party to the Company, pursuant to which the
Company has conditionally agreed to acquire and Mr.
Zeng Zhiyuan has conditionally agreed to sell: (i) the
issued share capital of Urban Thrive Limited; and (ii) the
loan, which amounted to approximately RMB5,513,000
as at 2 May 20183. The total consideration is
HK$7,500,000.

The consideration will be satisfied by the Company
issuance of 15,000,000 consideration shares at an issue
price of HK$0.50 per share in the following manner: (a)
HK$6,000,000 shall be payable in cash by the Company
to Mr. Zeng Zhiyuan within three business days from the
date of signing of the agreement as deposit; (b)
HK$7,500,000 shall be satisfied by the Company issuing
the consideration shares to Mr. Zeng Zhiyuan with the
deposit to be refunded in cash by Mr. Zeng Zhiyuan to
the Company upon completion. The acquisition has not
been completed at the date of this report.

Pursuant to the Company’s share option scheme, a total
of 18,900,000 share options held by three grantees
lapsed in April 2013, subsequent to the reporting date.

38. Approval of Financial Statements
The financial statements were approved and authorised for

issue by the Board of Directors on 28 June 2013.

Aok BB A i

For the year ended 31 March 2013
HE-_ZT—=F=A=1+—HILFE

37. {EHEREE

(@)

RZZE—=FHA+=0 ' AAFHER
RAIZBYE = BERTET LS -
Bt ARARERGREEE MYE
REEBGEHRELE - () Uban Thrive
Limited 2 1T A RiHEHK  R=F
—=FRAAZBZSBEHNAEARYE
5,513,0007T © 4 X.f& 57,500,000 7T

REZHARFUTIA RSB RIZSR
0.50 % 7T 2 3 17 {8 % 715,000,000 fi% 1t
EBROINT @A AR BREZHER
BB ZELEBRNURESH T ERL
A4 3214 6,000,000 T AEBET & ¢ (D) A
N AP FERK RE I iR 1A & AR R S AR AT
RBR 147,500,000 7T » ERZEE
REEBURESRAARRRES - &
EARAREAE - W EEN AT -

1R AR AR R B - = & AdE AR
% & $£18,900,00013 8 A HER 35 55 B 1
BR-F—ZFmARMN -

38. #LAEMBEE®RE
EEEOR T =FAA-TN\BIERE
BETIRMEERE -
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2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
—E-=f —T——F —T——F ZZT-TF ZZTTNEF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT FET FHET FHET FHIT
(RESEIE)!
(E51)
RESULTS E3
Revenue WA 764 2,786 3,480 2421 1
Loss before income tax expense B PS5 5 2 Al g8 (8,972) (7,768) (13,283) (25,797) (5,091)
Income tax expense PR Tyl iba - - - - -
Loss for the year attributable to KRARER AESL
owners of the Company NEEEE (8,972) (7,768) (13,283) (25,797) (5,091)

At 31 March
R=A=+—H
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
—E-=f T —T——F —ETNF
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$000
BT FHT FHL FAT FET
(RESEIE)!
(&51)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets FRBEE 6,802 24,207 7,160 8,153 1,632
Current assets MBEE 31,808 21,122 26,796 23,680 3,609
Current liabilities mEBAE (4,519) (3,232)  (10,081) (2,454) (623)
Non-current liability EREAGE - - (30,529 (29,162) -
Total equity/(capital deficiencies) — #Ez54a%8, (B A E4) 34,091 42,097 (6,604) 217 4,718
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